Reentry Council
City & County of San Francisco

AGENDA
Thursday, January 19, 2023
10am- 12pm
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85000249622?pwd=72zBROVV1ZTBvNDFFUU1laGJPdUYzZz09

Meeting ID: 850 0024 9622
Passcode: 341208

One tap mobile
+16699006833,,836046515554#,,,,851315# US (San Jose)
+14086380968,,836046515554#,,,,851315# US (San Jose)

One tap mobile
+16694449171,,850002496224,,,,%341208# US
+16699009128,,85000249622#,,,,%341208# US (San Jose)

Dial by your location
+1 669 444 9171 US
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 719 359 4580 US
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 646 931 3860 US
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 309 205 3325 US
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 386 347 5053 US
+1 564 217 2000 US
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
Meeting ID: 850 0024 9622
Passcode: 341208
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kmijx07dU5

REMOTE MEETING VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE Watch via Zoom: In accordance with Governor Gavin Newsom’s statewide
order for all residents to “Stay at Home” — and with the numerous local and state proclamations, orders and
supplemental directions — aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-
19 virus.

Reentry Council meetings will be held through videoconferencing will allow remote public comment via the
videoconference or through the number noted above. Members of the public are encouraged to participate remotely
by submitting written comments electronically to victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org. These comments will be made part
of the official public record in these matters and shall be brought to the attention of the members of the Reentry
Council member. Explanatory and/or Supporting Documents, if any, will be posted at: https://sfgov.org/sfreentry/

Note: Each member of the public will be allotted no more than 2 minutes to speak on each item.

Page 1 of 53


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85000249622?pwd=ZzBROVV1ZTBvNDFFUU1laGJPdUYzZz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kmjxO7dU5
https://sfgov.org/sfreentry/

Reentry Council
City & County of San Francisco

Call to Order and Introductions.
Findings to Allow Teleconferenced Meetings Under California Government Code Section 54953(e). (discussion
and possible action).

a. The Reentry Council will consider adoption of a resolution making findings that newly-enacted
Government Code Section 54953(e) requires in order to allow the Reentry Council to hold meetings
remotely, as currently required under local law, without complying with infeasible Brown Act
requirements.

Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement (discussion only).

Welcome the 4 new Board of Supervisors Appointed Reentry Council Members (Jusef Nathan, Joanna
Hernandez, Linda Hurshman, Jabari Jackson) (discussion only).

Public Comment on Any Item Listed Below as for “Discussion Only.” (NOTE: public comment on items listed as
“possible action” will occur during that agenda’s time).

Review and Adoption of Meeting Minutes of October 20, 2022 Council Meeting (discussion & possible action).
Staff Report on Activities of the Reentry Council and its Subcommittees (discussion only).
a. Staff Updates

a. Reentry Council Retreat

b. Fair Chance Ordinance

c. Housing Needs of Justice Involved Adults

Regular Update on Activities of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council, Sentencing Commission, Collaborative
Courts, and Community Corrections Partnership, STARR (discussion only).

Racial Equity Work Updates — Criminal justice Racial Equity Workgroup Update and other Departments are
welcome to provide a Racial Equity Update for their Department (discussion only).

. Approval of Repurposing the Direct Services Subcommittee into the Direct Action Subcommittee (discussion &
possible action).

. Approval of the Subcommittee Rosters (discussion & possible action).
. Direct Action Subcommittee Reentry Events Proposal - (discussion & possible action).

. Non-profit Reentry Services Providers Living Wage Proposal — Cedric Akbar & Adrian Maldonado (discussion &
possible action).

. Council Members’ Comments, questions and Requests for Future Agenda Items (discussion only)

. Public Comment on any item on today’s agenda, or on other business within the purview of the Reentry Council
(discussion only)

. Adjournment.

Page 2 of 53



Reentry Council
City & County of San Francisco

SUBMITTING WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENT TO THE REENTRY COUNCIL

Persons who are unable to attend the public meeting may submit to the Reentry Council, by the time the proceedings begin, written
comments regarding the subject of the meeting. These comments will be made a part of the official public record, and brought to
the attention of the Reentry Council. Written comments should be submitted to: Victoria Westbrook, Interim Reentry Policy
Planner, Adult Probation Department, 880 Bryant Street, Room 200, San Francisco, CA 94103, or via email:
reentry.council@sfgov.org.

MEETING MATERIALS

Copies of agendas, minutes, and explanatory documents are available through the Reentry Council’s website at http://sfreentry.com
or by calling Victoria Westbrook at (415) 930-2202 during normal business hours. The material can be FAXed or mailed to you upon
request.

ACCOMMODATIONS
To obtain a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the meeting,
please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at least two business days before the meeting.

TRANSLATION

Interpreters for languages other than English are available on request. Sign language interpreters are also available on request. For
either accommodation, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at least two business
days before the meeting.

CHEMICAL SENSITIVITIES

To assist the City in its efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or
related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical based
products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals.

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code)

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other
agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted
before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from
the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Public Library, and on the City's web site at: www.sfgov.org/sunshine.

FOR MORE INFORMATION ON YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE OR TO REPORT A VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE,
CONTACT THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE TASK FORCE:

Administrator

Sunshine Ordinance Task Force

City Hall, Room 244

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place,

San Francisco, CA 94102-4683.

Telephone: (415) 554-7724

Fax: (415) 554-5163

E-Mail: soft@sfgov.org

CELL PHONES

The ringing of and use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please
be advised that the Co-Chairs may order the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a
cell phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices.

LOBBYIST ORDINANCE

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by San
Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance (SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code sections 2.100-2.160) to register and report lobbying
activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the Ethics Commission at 30 Van Ness Avenue, Suite
3900, San Francisco CA 94102, telephone (415) 581-2300, FAX (415) 581-2317, and web site http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/

Page 3 of 53


mailto:veronica.martinez@sfgov.org
http://sfreentry.com/
http://www.sfgov.org/sunshine
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/

Reentry Council
City & County of San Francisco

DRAFT Minutes
Thursday, October 20, 2022
10am-12pm

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85000249622?pwd=2zBROVV1ZTBvNDFFUU1laGJPdUYzZz09
Meeting ID: 850 0024 9622

Passcode: 341208 One tap mobile +16699006833,,836046515554,,,,%851315# US (San Jose)
+14086380968,,836046515554#,,,,*851315# US (San Jose)

One tap mobile +16694449171,,850002496224,,,,*341208# US
+16699009128,,850002496224,,,,*341208# US (San Jose)
Dial by your location +1 669 444 9171 US +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 719 359 4580 US +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) +1 646 931 3860 US +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington
DC) +1 309 205 3325 US +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) +1 386 347 5053 US +1 564 217 2000 US +1 646
558 8656 US (New York) Meeting ID: 850 0024 9622 Passcode: 341208 Find your local number:
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kmjxO7dU5

REMOTE MEETING VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE Watch viaZoom: In accordance with Governor Gavin
Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to “Stay at Home” — and with the numerous localand
state proclamations,orders and supplemental directions—aggressive directiveshave been issued to
slow down and reduce the spread ofthe COVID19 virus. Reentry Council meetings will be held
through videoconferencing will allow remote public comment via the videoconference or throughthe
number noted above. Members of the public are encouraged to participate remotely by submitting
written comments electronically to victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org.

These comments will be made part of the official publicrecord in these matters and shallbe brought
to the attention of the members of the Reentry Councilmember. Explanatory and/or Supporting
Documents, ifany, will be posted at: https://sfgov.org/sfreentry/

Note: Each member of the public will be allotted no more than 2 minutes to speak on eachitem.

Page 4 of 53


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85000249622?pwd=ZzBROVV1ZTBvNDFFUU1laGJPdUYzZz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kmjxO7dU5
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org
https://sfgov.org/sfreentry/

Reentry Council

City & County of San Francisco

Members Present:

Chief Cristel Tullock (SFAPD), Tara Anderson for District Attorney Brooke Jenkins, Sheriff Paul Miyamoto,
Carolyn Goosen for Manohar Raju (Public Defender), Sheenia Branner (Mayoral Appointee), Robin
Candler for Grant Colfax (DPH), Assistant Deputy Chief Jennifer James for Anthony Castellano (US
Probation), Susie Smith(HSA), Karen Roye (DCSS), Tajuana Gray (OEWD), Jasmine Dawson for Marla Su
(DCYF), Antonio Napolean (Mayoral Appointee), Allen Harven (Mayoral Appointee), Gabe Cavillo for
Chief Katherine Miller (Juvenile Probation), Kaitlyn Motley for Noelle Simmons (HSH), Supervisor
Catherine Stefani, Gregory Sims for State Parole.

Members Absent:
James Caldwell (Mayor’s Office), Chief Scott (SFPD)

1. Call to Order and Introductions(discussiononly)
Chief Tullock called the meeting to order. Members introduced themselves.

2. Findings to Allow Teleconferenced Meetings Under California Government Code Section
54953(e).

The Reentry Council will consider adoption ofa resolution making findings that newly-enacted
Government Code Section54953(e) requires in order to allow the Reentry Councilto hold
meetings remotely, as currently required under local law, without complying with infeasible
Brown Act requirements.

Members voted to allow Reentry Council and Its Subcommittees to meet remotely under
California government Code 54953(e)

Sheenia Branner made the motion.

Motion seconded by Antonio Napoleon
No Public Comment
Motion Passed.

3. Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledged
Chief Tullock read the Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement.

4. WelcomeSupervisor Stefanito the Reentry Council
Chief Tullock introduced Supervisor Catherine Stefani as a representative from Board of
Supervisors on Reentry Council. Supervisor Stefani spoke and acknowledged work of Reentry
Council. Council members welcomed Supervisor Stefani.

5. Public Comment on Any Item Listed Below as for (discussion Only)
The following members of the public commented:
e Shayla Wilson offered support for Pretrial Diversion Project (agendaitem 12)

e Felipe Estevez member of pretrial, mentioned how pretrial helped him. Thanked pretrial
and RTP.

e Ruth Barajasjoins in support of pretrial

Page 5 of 53



Reentry Council

City & County of San Francisco

e Doug Welch SF Public Defender’s Office offered support of pretrial diversion.

e Ivan Corado Vega, Latino Task Force Manager spoke in support of pretrial
Cedric Akbar requested Reentry Council to address issues with Pretrial Diversion

e GeraldMiller gave public comment in support of pretrial

e RebeccaJackson (Center on Juvenile and Criminal Justice) comment on pretrial
diversion; pretrial has helped women get out of jail and into her facility (Cameo House)
praised pretrial as essential resource

e Arturo Durazospoke in support of pretrial diversion, particularly with undocumented
clients

6. Review and Adoption of Meeting Minutes ofJuly 28, 2022 (discussion and possible action)
e TaraAnderson motioned to adopt meeting minutes
e Motion seconded by Karen Roye
e Motion Passed

7. Staff Update on Activities of the Reentry Counciland its Subcommittees (discussion only)
Destiny Pletsch provided the following staff updates to the Reentry Council:

e The Reentry Council has four open seats for formerly incarcerated members

e Reentry Council Retreat will be held in December/January. Dateis to be determined.

e |n August the San Francisco Adult Probation Department, Episcopal Community Services
in partnership with San Francisco Pretrial Diversion launched the Pretrial Pilot Project
funded through the Superior Court. The pilot program will support up to 20 pretrial
clients with housing and on site services. The program s targeted for clients with
substance use or mental health challenges.

Destiny Pletsch provided updates regarding the Subcommittees of the Reentry Council:
e Direct Services Subcommittee:
e Legislation, Policy and Practices Subcommittee
The subcommittee reflected on the challengesof the last legislation cycle.
Updates on Legislation supported by the Reentry Council atthe July 28, 2022 meeting:
= AB 2023 Jail Discharge Planning Bill (signed by Governor)
= SB990 Parole County of Release Bill (sighed by Governor)
= SB 1008 Corrections Telecommunications Bill (signed by Governor)
= SB 1106 Criminal Resentencing Restitution Bill (signed by Governor)
=SB 936 California Conservation Corps Forestry Training Center Formerly
Incarcerated Individuals Reporting Bill (vetoed by Governor)
= SB 1427 Board of State Community Corrections Homeless and Mental Health
Court Bill (held in committee and did not reach Governor’s desk)
= AB 1816 Reentry Housing and Workforce Development Program (did not reach
Governor’s desk as it was ordered into the inactive file by State Senator Weiner)
= The next Legislative Policy and Practices Meeting to be held Wednesday,
November 16t, 2:30 PM
=  Women 15tSubcommittee- last meeting held Monday, September 12th,
discussed challenges, support, and unmet needs unique to Mothers upon
rejoining family post incarceration
= Next Women 15tSubcommittee meeting scheduled Monday, November 14t at
5:30 PM

Page 6 of 53



Reentry Council

City & County of San Francisco

8. RegularUpdate on Activities of the Juvenile Coordinating Council, Sentencing Commission,
Collaborative Courts, and Community Corrections Partnership,STARR (discussiononly)
e Sentencing Commission met September 20t, 2022
Updates and Discussion Took Place on the following maters:
e Criminal Justice Racial Equity Work Group invited members of the public to participate
in honoring ancestralland and heritage. (2) Criminal Justice Workplace Equity Group-
Tues November 15t 2022 to be held at the CASC (3) Discussion of the importance of
aligning case processing goals and how to potential7 alleviate court calendar backlogs,
which worsened during the pandemic
e Members were briefed on Stepping Up Initiative Case Management Process
e Next Sentencing Commission Meeting to be held December 13t, 2022, and calendar
invites will follow
e Next Community Corrections Partnership Meeting to be held in January 2023, and
calendarinvites will follow
e Update on STARR program: Proposition 47 Cohort Two Program will be ending February
of 2022, and STARR met objectives to engage, refer and provide care plans and
treatment tothose with substance use disorders or mental health needs that are
involved in the criminal justice system. The grant for Cohort Three group has been
awarded and will continue to focus on low-threshold case management
Chief Tullock asked for comment from council members, none given.

9. Racial Equity Workgroup Updates — Criminal Justice Racial Equity Work Group

e TaraAnderson, District Attorney’s Office stated that future meetings will be held the
first week of every month, and discussed the importance of addressing racial
disproportionality and disparity within the criminal legal system

e Gabriel Calvillo shared that Juvenile Probation administered a racial equity survey and is
also hiring of DEI manager to handle responsibilities of racial equity

e TaraAgnese shared the racial equity work taking place at the Adult Probation
Department including the exploration of training opportunities on diversity and
inclusion, continued meetings with to the Office of Racial Equity, strategic plan
development. Additionally the Department adopted a “Heritage and Diversity Calendar.

e Daniel Reyeswith the Adult Probation shared highlights of National Hispanic Heritage
month celebration and shared our culturalroots and stories can help us develop a
thriving workplace culture.

e Tijuana Grayreported that the Office of Workforce Development (OEWD) issued a racial
equity survey. OEWD is in its second year of implementing its racial equity plan which
includes staff onboarding with each new staff member attending a racial equity
orientation and also quarterly trainings

e Carolyn Goossen, Public Defender’s Office, acknowledged Hispanic Heritage Month. She
discussed the need for institutional, top-down changes in the criminal justice system
regarding racial equity

e Karen Roye shared that the Department of Child Support Services partnered with the
Financial Justice Project around legislation regarding child support which advances racial
equity for low-income families; SB 1055 protectslow income parents from driver’s
license suspensions from child support debt. Additionally DCSS is developing a Parent
Advocacy Committee, which will be parent-led with experience in child support program

Page 7 of 53



Reentry Council
City & County of San Francisco

e Susie Smith shared Human Services Agency involvement in Government Alliance for
Racial Equity since 2018, discussed need for diversity in recruitment

10. Presentation: San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project — Programmatic Information & Outcome
Data (discussion only)
Council members had requested a presentation from Pretrial Diversion Project regarding
concerns about people being rearrested while out on pretrial release.

David Mauroff, President of Pretrial of Diversion Project presented to the Reentry Council along
with members of his staff.

e The presentation highlighted the history of Pretrial Diversion, approximate caseload of
1700 individuals (currently), the diversity of pretrial diversion staff, overview of release
programs, public safety assessment tool, new initiatives and strategic partnerships

Members of the council expressed their gratitude for the work of the Pretrial Diversion Project.

11. Presentation: CROP (discussion only)
Jesse Foshay and Kit Bary presented to Reentry Council members on CROP (Creating Restorative
Opportunities and Programs)

12. Council Members’ Comments, questionsand requestsfor Future Agenda Items (discussion
only)
Carolyn Goosen requested that the Reentry Council should look into Pretrial Diversion joining as
members of the Reentry Council

13. Public Comment on any item on today’s agenda, or on other business within the purview of
the Reentry Council (discussiononly)
The following members of the public commented:
e Ivan Corado-Vega, Latino Task Force asked for clarification on Public Safety Assessment
tool (who designed it, who are stakeholders)
e Gloria Berrryrequested information regarding the impact of conviction history has on
job seekers including city jobs and how many people with jobs have a record
o Susie Smith: clarification on how HSA does not have that data;
e Silvio Lugo spoke in support on Pretrial Diversion Project
o Nikita Saini (Legislative Aide for Supervisor Hilary Ronen) expressed support of Pretrial
Diversion Project
14. Adjournment
The next Reentry Council meeting is Thursday, January 19, 2023, at 10 AM. It is to be conducted
over zoom unless new information from mayor is provided

Sheenia Branner made the motion to adjourn.
Motion seconded by Allen Harvin

No Public Comment

Motion Passed.

Page 8 of 53



Reentry Council

City & County of San Francisco

SUBMITTING WRITTEN PUBLICCOMMENTTOTHE REENTRY COUNCIL

Persons who are unable to attend the public meeting may submit to the Reentry Council, by the time
the proceedings begin, written comments regarding the subject of the meeting. These comments will
be made a part of the official public record, and brought to the attention of the Reentry

Council. Written comments should be submitted to: Victoria Westbrook, Interim Reentry Policy Planner,
Adult Probation Department, 880 Bryant Street, Room 200, San Francisco, CA 94103, or via email:
reentry.council@sfgov.org.

MEETING MATERIALS

Copies of agendas, minutes, and explanatory documents are available through the Reentry Council’s
website at http://sfreentry.com or by calling Victoria Westbrook at (415) 930-2202 during normal
business hours. The material can be FAXed or mailed to you upon request.

ACCOMMODATIONS
To obtain a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to

participate in the meeting, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415)
930-2202 at least two business days before the meeting.

TRANSLATION

Interpretersfor languagesother than English are available on request. Sign language interpretersare
also available on request. For either accommodation, please contact Victoria Westbrook at
reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at least two business days before the meeting.

CHEMICALSENSITIVITIES

To assist the City in its efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental iliness,
multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, attendeesat public meetingsare reminded that
other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help the City
accommodate these individuals.

KNOW YOUR RIGHTSUNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco
Administrative Code)

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions,
boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This
ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open
to the people's review. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the
Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Public Library, and on the City's web site at:
www.sfgov.org/sunshine.

FOR MORE INFORMATION ON YOUR RIGHTSUNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE ORTOREPORTA
VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE, CONTACT THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE TASK FORCE:
Administrator

Sunshine Ordinance Task Force

City Hall, Room 244

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place,

San Francisco, CA 94102-4683.

Telephone: (415) 554-7724

Fax: (415) 554-5163

E-Mail: soft@sfgov.org

Page 9 of 53


mailto:veronica.martinez@sfgov.org
http://sfreentry.com/
http://www.sfgov.org/sunshine

Reentry Council

City & County of San Francisco

CELL PHONES

The ringing of and use of cell phones, pagersand similar soud-producing electronic devices are
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Co-Chairs may order the removal from the
meeting room of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar
sound-producing electronic devices.

LOBBYIST ORDINANCE

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action
may be required by San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance (SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code
sections 2.100-2.160) to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist
Ordinance, please contact the Ethics Commission at 30 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 3900, San Francisco CA
94102, telephone (415) 581-2300, FAX (415) 581-2317, and web site http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/

Page 10 of 53


http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/

Women 1*' Subcommittee
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco

Roster of Members

Juthaporn Chaloeicheep (Chair)
Substance Abuse Counselor
Progress Foundation
chaloeicheepj@gmail.com

Alisea Wesley-Clark
Program Director — Her House
Westside Community Services
aclark@westside-health.org

Angie Wilson
Program Coordinator Women’s Resource

Center (WRC)
San Francisco Sheriff’s Office

Women’s Resource Center (WRC)
angela.wilson(@sfeov.org

Cristina Tucker

Community Outreach Worker
Healthright360
ctucker@healthright360. org

Tina Collins

Code Tenderloin

tina(@codetenderloin. org
OR

Nina Foster

Code Tenderloin

Nina@codetenderloin.org

Bionka Stevens
stvnsb@gmail.com

Traci Watson

Founder

Sister’s Circle
twatson(@sistercircle.net

Stephanie Gray
hurril 960@gmail.com

Jenna J. Rapues, MPH
Director

Gender Health SF, DPH
jenna.rapues(@sfdph.org

Rebecca Jackson

Program Director — Cameo House
CcJCJ

rijackson@cicj.org

Shannon Wise
Felton Institute
shannonwise2000@yahoo.com

Jermila McCoy
San Francisco Goodwill
mccoy@sfgoodwill.org

Linda Hurshman
San Francisco Goodwill
lhurshman@sfgoodwill.org

Lydia Lozano-DeGois
Homeless Prenatal Program
lydialozano@homelessprenatal.org

Daisy Gonzalez

Bilingual Housing Case Manager
Recovery Survival Network (RSN)
rsn.daisyg@gmail.com

Celia Roberts
Self-Determination Advocate

Young Women’s Freedom Center
celia@youngwomenfree.org

Current as of January 19, 2023

Page 1 of2

Page 11 of 53


mailto:chaloeicheepj@gmail.com
mailto:aclark@westside-health.org
mailto:angela.wilson@sfgov.org
mailto:ctucker@healthright360.org
mailto:tina@codetenderloin.org
mailto:Nina@codetenderloin.org
mailto:stvnsb@gmail.com
mailto:twatson@sistercircle.net
mailto:hurri1960@gmail.com
mailto:jenna.rapues@sfdph.org
mailto:rjackson@cjcj.org
mailto:shannonwise2000@yahoo.com
mailto:jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:lhurshman@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:lhurshman@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:rsn.daisyg@gmail.com
mailto:celia@youngwomenfree.org

Women 1*' Subcommittee
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco

Tiffany Holmes

San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Program
tiffanyh@sfpretrial.org

For more information, please contact
Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Policy Planner,
at victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org or (415)
930-2202 or visit http://sfgov.org/reentry

Daisha Spires

Program Manager

Young Women’s Freedom Center
Daisha@youngwomenfree.org

Current as of January 19, 2023 Page?2 of2

Page 12 of 53


mailto:Daisha@youngwomenfree.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org

Subcommittee on Legislation, Policy &

Practices

Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco

Roster of Members

Bobby Jones-Hanley (Chair)
Member of the Reentry Community
Founder

Purel

b.jones@purel.org

Tara Anderson

Grants & Policy Manager
District Attorney's Office
tara.anderson@sfgov.org

Patricia Martinez
District Attorney's Office
patricia.e.martinez@sfgov.org

Joe Calderon, CHW
Southeast Health Clinic
joseph.calderon@ucsf.edu

Linda Connelly

President

Successful Reentry
Iconnelly@successfulreentry.com

Malcolm Gissen
The SF Black & Jewish Unity Coalition
malcolm@megissen.com

Melanie Kim

State Policy Director
Public Defender’s Office
melanie. kim@sfgov.org

Sheenia Branner

Program Manager
Recovery Survival Network
rsn.sheenia@gmail.com

Melinda Benson

Prisoner Legal Services

San Francisco Sheriff's Office
melinda.benson@sfgov.org

Jermila McCoy
San Francisco Goodwill
jmccoy(@sfeoodwill.org

Ndubuisi Chimara
Citywide Forensic Case Management
ndu.chimara@ucsf.edu

Shanica Williams

Deputy Probation Officer

San Francisco Adult Probation Department
tara.anderson@sfgov.org

Kristin Scott-Calip

Deputy Probation Officer

San Francisco Adult Probation Department
kristin.scott-calip@sfgov.org

Leon Hopkins, LCSW

Drug Court Program Manager

San Francisco Department of Public Health
leon.hopkins@sfdph.org

Katrina Baptiste

Training Division/Trial Integrity Unit/Grand Jury

San Francisco District Attorney’s Office
katrina.baptiste(@sfgov.org

John Restauro
johnrestauro@gmail.com

Jesse Foshay

Coach Manager

CROP Organization
jesse.foshay(@croporg.org

Denise Gotthardt, AMFT
Behavioral Health Clinician

SF DPH/Community Justice Center
denise.gotthardt@sfdph.org

Current as of January 19, 2023

Page 1 of 2

Page 13 of 53


mailto:bjones-hanley@americaworks.com
mailto:tara.anderson@sfgov.org
mailto:patricia.e.martinez@sfgov.org
mailto:joseph.calderon@ucsf.edu
mailto:lconnelly@successfulreentry.com
mailto:malcolm@mgissen.com
mailto:melanie.kim@sfgov.org
mailto:rsn.sheenia@gmail.com
mailto:melinda.benson@sfgov.org
mailto:jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:ndu.chimara@ucsf.edu
mailto:tara.anderson@sfgov.org
mailto:kristin.scott-calip@sfgov.org
mailto:leon.hopkins@sfdph.org
mailto:katrina.baptiste@sfgov.org
mailto:johnrestauro@gmail.com
mailto:jesse.foshay@croporg.org
mailto:denise.gotthardt@sfdph.org

Subcommittee on Legislation, Policy &
Practices
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco

Yareli Ruiz Montes
Superior Court
yruizmontes(@sftc.org

For more information, please contact

Victoria Westbrook, Acting Reentry Policy
Planner @yictoria.westbrook(@sfgov.org or
(415) 930-2202 or visit http.//sfgov.org/reentry.

John Grayson
johngrayson228@yahoo.com

Current as of January 19, 2023 Page 2 of 2

Page 14 of 53


mailto:yruizmontes@sftc.org
mailto:johngrayson228@yahoo.com
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org

Direct Action Subcommittee
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco

Roster of Members

Richard Beal (Chair)

Director of Transitional housing
Tenderloin Housing Clinic
richardb@thclinic.org

Alisea Wesley-Clark

HER House Program Director
Westside Community Services
aclark@westside-health.org

Sheenia Branner
Mayoral Appointee to Reentry Council
rsn.sheenia@gmail.com

Emeterio Garcia
Director, Community Justice Center (CJC)
SF Dept. of Public Health

emeterio.garcia@sfdph.org

Freda Randolph Glenn

Operations Manager

Department of Child Support Services
freda.randolph@sfgov.org

Destiny Pletsch

Reentry Services Coordinator

San Francisco Adult Probation Department
destiny.pletsch@sfgov.org

Amarita King

Deputy Probation Officer

San Francisco Adult Probation Department
amarita.king@sfgov.org

Jabari Jackson
Westside Community Services
jrji41510@gmail.com

Jermila McCoy
San Francisco Goodwill
jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org

Emmeline Sun

Clinical supervisor

Citywide Forensic Team (UCSF)
emmeline.sun@ucsf.edu

Ali Riker
Director of Programs
San Francisco Sheriff’s Office
alissa.riker@sfgov.org
Or
Andy Dulay
San Francisco Sheriff’s Office
dennis.dulay@sfgov.org

Donna Hilliard

Executive Director

Code Tenderloin

Donna@codetenderloin.org
Or

Elgin Rose

Code Tenderloin

Elgin@codetenderloin.org

Steven Rice

Code Tenderloin

Steven@codetenderloin.org
Or

Chuck Stubblefield

Code Tenderloin

Chuck@codetenderloin.org

Cedric Akbar

Director of Forensics
Westside Community Services
Cakbar@westside-health.org

Cregg Johnson

Director, Positive directions TRP Academy
Westside Community Services
cjohnson@westside-health.org

Current as of January 19, 2023

Page 1 of 2

Page 15 of 53


mailto:richardb@thclinic.org
mailto:aclark@westside-health.org
mailto:rsn.sheenia@gmail.com
mailto:emeterio.garcia@sfdph.org
mailto:freda.randolph@sfgov.org
mailto:destiny.pletsch@sfgov.org
mailto:jrobles@healthright360.org
mailto:jrj41510@gmail.com
mailto:jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:emmeline.sun@ucsf.edu
mailto:alissa.riker@sfgov.org
mailto:Donna@codetenderloin.org
mailto:Elgin@codetenderloin.org
mailto:Steven@codetenderloin.org
mailto:Chuck@codetenderloin.org
mailto:Cakbar@westside-health.org
mailto:cjohnson@westside-health.org

Direct Action Subcommittee
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco

Adrian Maldonado

Director, Minna Project

Westside Community Services
amaldonado@westside-health.org

Lakisha Richmond
San Francisco Goodwill
jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org

Allan Knuckle
Arriba Juntos
aknuckle@arribajuntos.org

Thompson Tran

Intake Coordinator

Harbor Lights

Thompson. Tran@usw.salvationarmy.org

George Turner
Phatt Chance Community Services
phattchancecommunity@gmail.com

Or
Josua Short
Phatt Chance Community Services
phattchancecommunity.josh@gmail.com

Jesse Foshay

Coach Manager

CROP Organization
Jesse.Foshay@croporg.org

Kimberley Tillman

Addiction and Recovery Counselor
UCSF/Citywide
Kimberly.Tillman@ucsf.edu

Traci Watson

Founder

Sister’s Circle
twatson@sistercircle.net

Patricia Martinez

Coordinator, Young Adult Justice Initiative
District Attorney’s Office
Patricia.E.Martinez@sfgov.org

Jay Sutter
San Francisco Goodwill
jsutter@sfgoodwill.org

Brittany Sosa
San Francisco Goodwill
bsosa@sfgoodwill.org

Mike Paisley

Senior Ex-Offender Program

mike.pasley@bhpmss.org
Or

Amica Nelson

Senior Ex-Offender Program

Amica.nelson@bhpmss.org

Isaac Gray
Young Community Developer
igray@ycdjobs.org

John Grayson
johngrayson228@yahoo.com

For more information, contact

Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Policy Planner,
at victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org or

(415) 930-2202 or visit
http://sfgov.org/reentry

Current as of January 19, 2023

Page 2 of 2

Page 16 of 53


mailto:amaldonado@westside-health.org
mailto:jmccoy@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:Thompson.Tran@usw.salvationarmy.org
mailto:Jesse.Foshay@croporg.org
mailto:Kimberly.Tillman@ucsf.edu
mailto:twatson@sistercircle.net
mailto:Patricia.E.Martinez@sfgov.org
mailto:jsutter@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:bsosa@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:igray@ycdjobs.org
mailto:johngrayson228@yahoo.com

Reentry Council
of the City & County of San Francisco

Roster of Members

Co-Chairs

Cristel Tullock

Chief Adult Probation Officer

Adult Probation Department

City & County of San Francisco

850 Bryant Street, 2nd floor

San Francisco, CA 94103
Cristel.tullock@sfgov.org

Executive Assistant: La Shaun Williams

lashaun.r.williams@sfeov.org
(415) 553-1687

Brooke Jenkins

District Attorney

Office of the District Attorney
City & County of San Francisco
350 Rhode Island Street

North Building, Suite 400N
San Francisco, CA 94103
districtattorney@sfeov.org
Confidential Assistant: Robyn Burke
robyn.burke@sfeov.org

(415) 553-1742

Alternate: Tara Anderson
tara.anderson(@sfeov.org

Paul Miyamoto

Sheriff

Sheriff’s Office

City & County of San Francisco
City Hall, Room 456

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, CA 94102
sheriff@sfeov.org

Executive Assistant: Johanna Saenz
johanna.saenz@sfeov.org

(415) 554-7225

Alternate: Assistant Sheriff Tanzaneka Carter

tanzaneka.carter@sfeov.org

Manohar Raju

Public Defender

Office of the Public Defender
City & County of San Francisco
555 7t Street

San Francisco, CA 94103
manohar.raju(@sfeov.org

(415) 553-1677

Executive Assistant: Angela Auyong
angela.auyong(@sfeov.org
(415) 553-1677

Alternate: Valerie Ibarra
valerie.ibarra@sfepv.org

Honorable London Breed
Mayor of San Francisco

City & County of San Francisco
City Hall, Room 200

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102
Alternate: James Caldwell
james.caldwell@sfeov.org

Jabari Jackson
Board Appointee (Seat 4)
jri41510@email.com

Current as of January 19. 2023

Page 1 of 3
Page 17 of 53


mailto:Cristel.tullock@sfgov.org
mailto:districtattorney@sfgov.org
mailto:robyn.burke@sfgov.org
mailto:tara.anderson@sfgov.org
mailto:sheriff@sfgov.org
mailto:johanna.saenz@sfgov.org
mailto:tanzaneka.carter@sfgov.org
mailto:manohar.raju@sfgov.org
mailto:angela.auyong@sfgov.org
mailto:valerie.ibarra@sfgpv.org
mailto:james.caldwell@sfgov.org
mailto:jrj41510@gmail.com

Reentry Council

of the City & County of San Francisco

Other Members

Catherine Stefani
Supervisor, District 2
Board of Supervisors
City Hall

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244

San Francisco, Ca 94102-4689
Catherine.stefani@sfeov.org

William Scott

Chief

Police Department

City & County of San Francisco
1245 Third St.

San Francisco, CA 94158
William.scott@sfgov.org
Executive Assistant: Rowena Carr
Rowena.Carr@sfeov.org

(415) 837-7000

Alternate: Cmdr. Peter Walsh
peter.walsh@sfeov.org

Katy Miller

Chief Juvenile Probation Officer
Juvenile Probation Department
City & County of San Francisco
375 Woodside Avenue, Room 243
San Francisco, CA 94127
Executive Secretary: Sheryl Cowan

Sheryl.cowan@sfeov.org
(415) 753-7556

Antonio Napoleon
Mayoral Appointee
ANapoleon@westside-health.org

Allen Harven
Mayoral Appointee
allenharven42@gmail.com

Sheenia Branner
Mayoral Appointee
Sheenia.branner@glorisagift.org

Mark Culkins

Court Administrator

Superior Court of California, County of San
Francisco

mculkins@sfic.org

JusefNathan
Board Appointee (Seat 1)
jusefnathansflagmail.com

Joanna Hernandez
Board Appointee (Seat 2)
joannah(@sfpretrial. org

Linda Hurshman
Board Appointee (Seat 3)
lhurshman@sfgoodwill.org

Cynthia Nagendra

Deputy Director for Planning, Performance
& Strategy

Department of Homelessness & Supportive
Housing

cynthia.nagendral (@sfeov.org

Kate Sofis

Director of Office of Economic and Workforce
Developm ent

City & County of San Francisco

Alternate: Tajuana Gray

tajuana. gray@sfgov.org

Alternate 2: Ken Nim

ken.nim@sfeov.org

Current as of January 19. 2023

Page2 of 3

Page 18 of 53


mailto:Catherine.stefani@sfgov.org
mailto:William.scott@sfgov.org
mailto:Rowena.Carr@sfgov.org
mailto:Sheryl.cowan@sfgov.org
mailto:ANapoleon@westside-health.org
mailto:allenharven42@gmail.com
mailto:Sheenia.branner@glorisagift.org
mailto:mculkins@sftc.org
mailto:jusefnathansf@gmail.com
mailto:joannah@sfpretrial.org
mailto:lhurshman@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:cynthia.nagendra1@sfgov.org
mailto:tajuana.gray@sfgov.org

Reentry Council

of the City & County of San Francisco

Anthony Castellano
Chief U.S. Probation Officer
Northern District of California

U.S. Probation Office, U.S. District Court

450 Golden Gate Avenue
San Francisco, CA 94102

anthony castellano@canp.uscourts.gov

Alternate: Jennifer James
Assistant Deputy Chief
jennifer james@ canp.uscourts.gov

Dr. Grant Colfax

Department of Public Health
City & County of San Francisco
1380 Howard Street

San Francisco, CA 94103
Alternate: Angelica Almeida
angelica.almeida@sfdph.org
2nd Alternate: Robin Candler
robin.candler@sfeov.org

Karen Roye

Director

Department of Child Support Services
City & County of San Francisco

617 Mission Street

San Francisco, CA 94105
karen.roye@sfeov.org

Alternate: Freda Randolph Glenn
freda.randolph(@sfeov.org

Trent Rhorer

Executive Director

Human Services Agency

City & County of San Francisco
170 Otis Street

San Francisco, CA 94103
trent.rhorer@sfeov.org
Alternate: Susie Smith
susie.smith(@sfgov.org

Maria Su

Director

Department of Children, Youth & Their
Families

City & County of San Francisco

1390 Market Street, Suite 900

San Francisco, CA 94102
maria@dcyf.org

Executive Assistant: Marisol Beaulac
(415)554-3510

Alternate: Jasmine Dawson
Jasmine.dawson@sfeov.org

Gregory Sims

District Administrator
Division of Parole Operations
California Department of Corrections &
Rehabilitation

1727 Mission St.

San Francisco, CA 94102

gregory.sims(@cdcr.ca.gov
(415) 703-3164

Alternate: Tom Porter
Tom.Porter@cdcr.ca.gov

Alternate 2: Dean Onyanga
Onyanga.Dean@cdcr.ca.gov

Staff

Victoria Westbrook

Reentry Policy Planner/

Women’s Gender Responsive Coordinator
Adult Probation Department

Community Assessment & Services Center
564 6t Street

San Francisco, CA 94103

victoria.westbrook@sfeov.org
(415) 930-2200

For more information about the
Reentry Council of the City and
Council of San Francisco, please
visit www.sfoov.org/reentry

Current as of January 19. 2023

Page 3 of 3

Page 19 of 53


mailto:anthony_castellano@canp.uscourts.gov
mailto:jennifer_james@canp.uscourts.gov
mailto:angelica.almeida@sfdph.org
mailto:robin.candler@sfgov.org
mailto:karen.roye@sfgov.org
mailto:freda.randolph@sfgov.org
mailto:trent.rhorer@sfgov.org
mailto:james.whelly@sfgov.org
mailto:Jasmine.dawson@sfgov.org
mailto:gregory.sims@cdcr.ca.gov
mailto:Tom.Porter@cdcr.ca.gov
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org

Reentry Council of the City and County of
San Francisco

2023 Meeting Calendar

Council Meetings: 3rd Thursday of the first month of each quarter 10am-12pm
e January 19, 2023- Zoom Meeting
e April 20, 2023 -TBD
e July 20, 2023 -TBD
e October 19,2023 - TBD

Subcommittee on Direct Action: 1st Thursday of all even months 1:00pm — 3:00pm

e February 2, 2023 - CASC, 564 6t Street, Upstairs Conference Room 226/227
April 6, 2023 - CASC, 564 6t Street, Upstairs Conference Room 226/227
June 1,2023 - CASC, 564 6t Street, Upstairs Conference Room 226/227
August 3,2023 - CASC, 564 6t Street, Upstairs Conference Room 226/227
October 5, 2023 - CASC, 564 6t Street, Upstairs Conference Room 226/227
December7,2023 - CASC, 564 6t Street, Upstairs Conference Room 226/227

Subcommittee on Legislation, Policy and Practices: 4th Wednesday of all uneven months 2:30-4:30pm, plus
additional strategic planning meetings

e January 25, 2023 -Zoom Meeting

e February 22,2023 -TBD

e March22,2023 -TBD

e April 12,2023 -TBD

e May24,2023-TBD

e June XX, 2023 -TBD

e July 27,2022-TBD

e September 27,2023 - TBD

Women 15t Subcommittee: 1st Monday of all even months 5:30-7:30pm
e February6, 2023 -Zoom Meeting
April 3, 2023 -TBD
e June 5,2023-TBD
e August7,2023-TBD
e QOctober 2,2023 - TBD
e December4,2023-TBD

Slated Community Events supportedand/or hosted by Reentry Council

e 11M Annual Restorative Justice Reentry Conference and Resource Fair at Cathedral of St. Mary of the
Assumption Event Center located at 1111 Gough St -TBD

Page 20 of 53



January 19, 2023

To: Reentry Council of the City and County of San Francisco

Fr: Cedric Akbar, Director of Forensic Services, Westside Community Services
Adrian Maldonado, Director Minna Project, Westside Community Services

Re: Reentry Non-Profit Wages

Dear Reentry Council:

Non-profit organizations providing reentry services are requesting an increase in staff wages in
an effort to:

1. Provide aliving wage

2. Retain staff

3. Create parity among government and non-profit employees

In FY 2022/2023, the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH) was able to
secure $63,000,000 from the City and County of San Francisco to increase wages of staff working
in programs funded by HSH. Attached is a May 4, 2022 memo from Ben Rosenfield (Controller)
to Mayor Breed and the San Francisco Board of Supervisors in support of wage increase to
address increasing pressures non-profits face to retain staff, maintain service level stability, and
effectively serve clients.

Reentry Non-Profit Wages

Position Proposed Wage HSH

Program Directors $110,000 —$140,000

Program Managers S 95,000.00

Clinical Case Manager (Licensed LCSW, LMFT, LPCC) S 95,000.00

Clinical Case Manager (Registered Clinician working

toward licensure) S 85,000.00

Reentry Case Managers, Employment Specialists S 74,000.00

Peers S 64,000.00

Program Monitors S 64,000.00

Maintenance S 60,000.00

Janitor S 55,000.00 | $ 47,840.00

Desk Clerks S 55,000.00 | $ 45,760.00
Sincerely,
Coectrce Afbar Adrian Maldonado
Cedric Akbar Adrian Maldonado
Director of Forensic Services Director, Minna Project
Westside community Services Westside community Services

Page 21 of 53



OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER Convoler

Todd Rydstrom
Deputy Controller

MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor London N. Breed
Board of Supervisors

FROM: Ben Rosenfield, Controller
Laura Marshall, Project Manager, City Performance
Joanna Bell, Senior Performance Analyst, City Performance

DATE: May 4, 2022

SUBJECT: Findings and Recommendations for Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures

The City and County of San Francisco (City) contracts with over 600 nonprofit service providers to
deliver $1.2 billion in safety net services to vulnerable residents each year. Nonprofits deliver services
supporting some of San Francisco’s most pressing issues, many of which, such as homelessness and
behavioral health concerns, have been exacerbated by the pandemic.

Nonprofits face extreme inflationary and market pressures, which often exceed contract budget
increases. Low wage levels have led to difficulty hiring and high turnover, impacting client services and
service provider stability. Gaps in staffing can create unsafe environments for participants and staff.
Absent action, these challenges will continue to impact service levels, may create unsafe conditions and
are likely to impede the implementation of major adopted enhancements, including for homeless
services and childcare programs.

To understand the scale of the issue, the Controller’s Office conducted interviews and focus groups to
identify trends in wage pressures and how pain points impact nonprofits and the services they deliver.
Additionally, we reviewed City contract spending data, data gathered in the Controller’s Office FY19-20
analysis of the Minimum Compensation Ordinance (MCO), and wage data provided by the Department
of Children, Youth and Their Families and the Supportive Housing Provider Network. The goal is to
identify options and recommendations to support the Mayor, the Board of Supervisors, and
departments in making targeted and impactful budget decisions in this area as they prepare the City's
annual budget.

CITY HALL - 1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE - ROOM 316 - SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-4694
PHONE 415-554-7500 « FAX 415-554-7466
Page 22 of 53



2 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Summary of Key Findings

Nonprofit workers earning the lowest wages often perform difficult front-line services necessary
for program operations.

o These include front desk clerks, janitors, peer workers, childcare workers, clerical
workers, security, and outreach staff, with positions generally earning less than $20/hr.

o Low wages lead to high levels of turnover.

Below-market wages in mid-level positions lead to difficulty hiring and retaining staff.

o This includes case managers, clinical staff, legal staff such as attorneys, finance staff,
maintenance workers and property managers. While these positions may earn up to or
above $40/hr, many earn under $25/hr.

Interviewed service providers report that many of workers in low-wage and mid-level positions
are Black, Indigenous, People of Color (BIPOC), raising concerns about equitable pay.

o Providers also report that many staff members have lived experience that provides skill
and expertise for this work, raising concerns that this lived experience is undervalued.

High turnover, inconsistent staffing and difficulty hiring impacts client services, creates safety
concerns, and destabilizes organizations.

o Hiring and retention issues can lead to delays in turning over housing units for new
residents, higher caseloads, decreased client engagement in services, and under-
delivering on units of service.

o Many departments reported underspending on contracts to deliver services due to
contractors struggling to hire. This underspending suggests that services are not being
delivered, leaving gaps in the social safety net.

The City's typical levers for addressing wage pressures may not be sufficient.

o The Cost of Doing Business (CODB) allocation is the easiest to implement as an across-
the-board approach, but is often used to address other inflationary pressures (such as
rent increases) rather than wages. Operational challenges often delay roll-out of CODB
funds, which can delay wage increases for staff or reimbursement for nonprofits.

o The Minimum Compensation Ordinance (MCO) supports the lowest wage workforce
but is difficult to implement, and may not adequately address wage issues among
higher-skill positions.

o Department-specific initiatives can target funding allocations specifically, but are
difficult to implement and create parity concerns for the large number of nonprofits
funded by multiple departments or by a mix of City and non-City funders.

Recommendations
The following recommendations are explained in more detail in the body of the memo.

1. Wage issues faced by the City's nonprofit contractors are of a magnitude that standard
inflationary increases to contracts will not address them. The City must identify strategies
above a standard inflationary CODB.

2. Needed investments are likely to be significant, and it is unlikely that the City can afford to
make investments that solve for these wage constraints in a single budget year. The City
should plan for this need as part of a multi-year strategy.

3. The current wage pressures experienced by nonprofit contractors represent a complex array of
issues that will require multiple, complementary strategies to address. Some may need to be

Page 23 of 53



3 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

implemented over several years. However, to address immediate needs, the City should
develop several short-term options that could be delivered simultaneously in the coming
budget, as described below.
a. Apply a Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) above the Cost of Doing Business (CODB)
allocation.
b. Develop specific budget allocations to address wage pressures in key service areas with
planned expansion, such as homelessness, mental health, and childcare services.

4. The City should transition from an annual CODB allocation to a process where multi-year
contracts include a planned increase (or “embedded escalator”) in subsequent years to
ensure nonprofit contractors have stable, planned funding increases to address inflationary
pressures in contracts, including for wages.

5. The City should develop a comprehensive plan to address the ongoing wage pressures
faced by nonprofit contractors, and to make structural overhauls where needed to ensure
equitable wage levels for City-funded services. The plan should include gathering wage and
demographic data from nonprofit contractors and convening City and nonprofit partners to
establish policy priorities and initiatives.

The City and County of San Francisco (City) contracts with over 600 nonprofit service providers to
deliver $1.2 billion in safety net services to vulnerable residents each year. Nonprofits face extreme
inflationary and market pressures and many contract budgets have not kept pace. Low wage levels lead
to difficulty hiring and high turnover, which impact client services and the service provider stability.

The Controller’s Office has convened a policy group of City grant-making departments and nonprofit
providers to discuss issues of nonprofit sustainability. The group identified the need to make immediate
investments in nonprofit wages to ensure continuous and safe delivery of essential client services. To
understand the scale of the issue, the Controller's Office conducted interviews and focus groups to
identify trends in wage pressures and how pain points impact nonprofits and the services they deliver.'

The goal of this work is to identify options and recommendations to support the Mayor and Board of
Supervisors to make targeted and impactful budget choices on strategies that support nonprofit
sustainability.

Scale of City Spending on Nonprofit Contracts

In Fiscal Year 2020-2021 (FY20-21), the City made payments to nonprofit service providers totaling $1.2
billion. Three departments represented the highest spending levels in FY20-21: Department of Public
Health (DPH), Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH), and the Human Services
Agency (HSA), comprising over 70% of total spending on nonprofit services. The top five departments
shown in Figure 1 below were responsible for nearly 90% of total spending on safety net services
delivered by nonprofits.

T See Appendix for more on methodology.

Page 24 of 53



4 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

While specific data about spending on wages is not available across all contracts, assessing overall
spending by service area highlights the scale of the issues, and indicates where targeted approaches
may have the most impact.

Figure 1: Supplier Payments by Department, FY20-212
5350

5300

5250

5150

5100
| I
-

Public Health  Homelessnes Human Services Children, Youth  Housingand — Allother service
and Supportive & Families Communicy areas
Housing Development

L
=]
[=]
(=]

Spending inMillions

L
(=]

Department

In FY19-20, the Controller’'s Office conducted an application process related to the City's Minimum
Compensation Ordinance (MCO).3 The process allocated funds across departments and nonprofit
contracts for the City’s lowest wage workers. While this data is now dated and actual salary levels have
changed in the three years since that application process, we can use the FY19-20 MCO analysis* to
estimate how the low-wage workforce is distributed across departments, per Figure 2.

2 An additional 34 departments are represented in the “All other service areas” category.

3 Learn more about the MCO on the Office of Labor Standards Enforcement website: https://sfgov.org/olse/minimum-
compensation-ordinance-mco

4 See the Controller's Office’s final memo documenting allocations by department and nonprofit supplier here:
https://sfcontroller.org/sites/default/files/Documents/Auditing/MCO%20Allocation%20Summary%20Memo%20FINAL.pdf

Page 25 of 53


https://sfgov.org/olse/minimum-compensation-ordinance-mco
https://sfgov.org/olse/minimum-compensation-ordinance-mco
https://sfcontroller.org/sites/default/files/Documents/Auditing/MCO%20Allocation%20Summary%20Memo%20FINAL.pdf

5 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

30.00%

25.00%

M Percentof
20.00% MCO
Allocation
15.00%
Percentof
Total FY20-
10.00% 21 Spending
5.00%
0.00% .

Percent of Total Spending

Public Health Homelessness and Human Services Children, Youth & Housing and AllOther Service
Supportive Housing Families Community Areas
Development

Department

While we do not have data showing the exact amounts of spending on low-wage workers by
department, from this data we can reasonably assume that DPH and the Mayor’s Office of Housing and
Community Development (MOHCD) fund comparatively fewer low-wage workers as a proportion of
entire spending, while HSH and the Department of Children, Youth and Their Families (DCYF) fund
comparatively more low-wage workers.

The MCO allocation data also shows the total number of full-time equivalent staff (FTEs) impacted by
funding allocated for MCO-related wage adjustments in FY19-20. A total of 2,697 FTEs are assumed to
have received additional wages through that analysis. Of those FTEs, the breakdown by service area can
be seen in Figure 3 below.

> In the chart, the "All Other Service Areas” bars include 14 departments in the “percent of MCO allocations” bar and 34
departments in the "percent of FY20-21 spending.”

Page 26 of 53



6 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

500
400
300
- I I I I
100

Mumber FTEs

Public Heafth Homelessnes and Human Services Children, Youth & Housing and AllOther Service Areas
Supportive Housing Families Communicy
Development

Department

This data shows the scale of the potential impacts of targeting wage adjustments in specific sectors. The
MCO data suggests that HSH has the greatest number of low-wage FTEs who would benefit from future
wage adjustments, with almost 800 FTEs assumed to have received MCO-related adjustments in FY19-
20. Additionally, this data makes clear that while low-wage workers make up a large proportion of
DCYF's total spending, the overall number of low-wage FTEs funded by DCYF remains lower than DPH,
HSA and HSH.

All analysis points to the scale of the need: wage pressures are real, they are burdensome, and they are
impacting services. The following sections outline key themes and preliminary findings that speak to:

The scale and impact of the issue, including sectors where wage pressures are most urgent
Strategies the City could use to address wage pressures

Limitations and constraints to addressing wage pressures

Equity considerations related to nonprofit wages

Opportunities for further work

Assessing the Scale and Impact of the Issue

Workers earning the lowest wages often perform difficult front-line services.

Nonprofits and departments identified the following roles and positions as being among the lowest
paid workforce, typically earning between $17.34/hr (current Minimum Compensation Ordinance
threshold) and $20/hr:

6 “All other service areas” includes the remaining 14 departments that received MCO allocations to distribute to
nonprofits

Page 27 of 53



Front desk staff at Permanent Supportive
Housing sites

7 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Engagement counselors
Childcare workers

Shelter monitors After school program staff

Janitors Outreach workers
Peer advocates Security

Eee.rdheiltflw promolters Entry-level clerical workers
identi nselor
esidential counselors IHSS home health workers

Many of these positions are entry level, but still require difficult work, such as a desk clerk at a housing
site needing to deescalate a client in mental health crisis. This category also includes direct service
workers who earn an hourly wage over $20/hr but work part-time rather than full-time to limit costs.
These workers are also providing valuable direct services, but often make less than $35,000 per year
and may not receive benefits.

An analysis of wages across DCYF's contracts for FY21-22 showed that among adult staff (non-youth
workers), there were 387 full time equivalent staff (FTEs) earning less than $25/hr. The positions in this
category are primarily direct service providers and support staff. These categories include case
managers, clinicians, program assistants, student support advocates, academic specialists, etc.

The Controller’s Office interviewed members of the Supportive Housing Provider Network (SHPN),
which conducted analysis among members to identify wage levels and hiring and retention issues
among property management roles. SHPN reports the following:

Front Desk Clerks among surveyed SHPN providers typically have wages between $16.55/hr and
$20/hr. The current vacancy rate is 16% but while positions can be hired quickly, providers
report frequent turnover in these roles.

Janitors among surveyed SHPN providers typically have wages between $16.55/hr and $20/hr,
with a vacancy rate of 27%.

This class of workers is critical to addressing wage challenges in nonprofit contracts for a few reasons:

Some roles in this category are hard to fill due to low wage levels, but nonprofits report that
these roles are essential to their operation.

Even if some positions are not hard to fill, they still experience substantial turnover. Multiple
stakeholders mentioned that once entry level staff receive training, they are likely to switch
organizations and roles frequently to move to better-paying work, including within the
nonprofit sector.

Stakeholders identified that individuals in these roles have a high degree of client contact which
requires specific skills, including lived experience, but this client contact can also lead to
significant exposure to trauma in the workplace that can impact performance.

Stakeholders noted that many workers in these roles either take on second jobs or move out of
San Francisco and have long commutes and high travel costs, which also contributes to high
turnover.

Several participants noted that they anecdotally understand that low-wage workers experience
episodic homelessness, and are at risk of homelessness even as many work in organizations
aimed at addressing this issue.

Page 28 of 53



8 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Below-market wages in mid-level positions lead to difficulty hiring and retaining staff.

Nonprofits and departments identified the following types of mid-level positions as being heavily
impacted by turnover and difficulty hiring:

Case managers, with an emphasis on Finance and fundraising staff and back-
bilingual staff and staff with some office workers

training or experience Other direct service staff, including meal
Clinical staff in behavioral health settings delivery, program coordinators, etc.
Legal staff, such as attorneys Maintenance workers

Property managers

While not necessarily the lowest wage workers in an organization, nonprofits identified that many
workers in these mid-level roles are earning less than $25/hr, as seen in Figure 4.

/ Under $20/hr \ / $20 - 25/hr \ / $25-30/hr \

Data Entry Residential Youth Residential Clinicai Case Case Salaried
Spedialist Counseior Worker/Salari Counselor Manager Manager Mentor
Case

Counselor Felfdcnton
Managers Child care peer

worker Advocates — — - —

. — Mec::;r Gt Law Clerks o $30 = $40/hr

Educator

Janitors Jenitor

Mental St
o 2 Heaith clinician
Housing C""":" Operations T'C‘:'Ep?“'r" Cinidians Amomeys
Specialist RIES Assistants EEn
(playroom for
Desk Clerics Bk Fids)

CiinicalCase  Mental heaith g dlinicians
———— Manager clinicians
Employment
counselors Training

) specicall
maintenance P ¥ Coordinator

o g “$40+/hr

food pantry

il Clinical Deveiapment nurses
Supervisor Professionals

peer
advocass

behavioral Chief i
health coach Program e
e supervisars

For example, this fiscal year, housing providers participated in a study by the Corporation on Supportive
Housing on services in supportive housing programs, and this work included a survey among
participants about wage levels for case management staff. The study found that current salaries started
in the "high teens” per hour, particularly among smaller organizations, and rose to $33/hr for case
managers at larger organizations or government-affiliated groups. Just over half of the respondents
reported salaries for case managers below $25/hr.

7 See Methodology section for more details on focus group. Bold colors reflect lowest wage positions. Light colors reflect
hardest to fill positions. Green represents general social services; pink represents youth-serving organizations; blue
represents homelessness/housing/shelter services; yellow represents behavioral heath treatment and/or clinical services.

Page 29 of 53



9 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Additionally, the SHPN survey of property management roles found that, among surveyed SHPN
providers, current wages for maintenance workers have a range of $17.34/hr through $35.60/hr, with
the large range in salaries due to specialized technical skills. These roles have a 19% vacancy rate.
Property managers have a salary range of $26/hr through $42/hr and an 11% vacancy rate among
surveyed members.

High turnover and difficulty hiring impacts client services and destabilizes
organizations.

High turnover and high vacancy rates make it difficult for providers to meet City contracted service
levels. It also results in underspending on contracts which can have negative financial implications for
the organization.

During interviews, stakeholders shared many examples of the negative impacts, including:

One nonprofit respondent reported a 90-day delay in launching a new program due to hiring
constraints, while another reported having to restructure contracts to reduce the number of
staff overall and redistribute salaries to existing positions to ensure retention of those staff.
Vacancies mean staff must take on large and burdensome caseloads, e.g., a property manager
overseeing multiple buildings, or case managers having double the caseload. According to
multiple respondents, vacancy-related workload issues lead to burnout among remaining staff
and contributes to additional turnover.

SHPN reported that vacancies among property management roles at housing sites such as
janitors, maintenance staff and site managers lead to delays in turning over vacant units, which
impacts their ability to meet City housing goals.

The recruitment and training to bring entry-level workers up to speed is a cost and time burden
on nonprofits that compounds if those workers leave their positions after a short period of time.
Many departments reported underspending on contracts to deliver services due to contractors
struggling to hire. This underspending suggests that services are not being delivered, leaving
gaps in the social safety net.

According to one housing provider, desk clerks or case managers who do not have
relationships with clients or adequate training can create high-risk environments, as they may
not have the training or experience needed to deescalate violence or a client in crisis. According
to the provider, this can lead to an overreliance by staff on 911, police, or other emergency
services.

Nonprofits report client engagement with services decreases when there is high turnover;
clients report not wanting to build relationships with staff who may leave after a few months.
One nonprofit housing provider reported a 40% annual turnover rate, leading to a long-
standing client having up to 10 different case managers during their stay.

These challenges also highlight a key point that several department representatives mentioned: the
conversation of raising nonprofit wages is often confounded by the assumption that raising wages
means that fewer programs and positions will be funded and lead to more limited services and fewer
clients served. Department stakeholders were clear that that this is not true: services are not currently
being delivered at the anticipated rates because of job vacancies. If raising wages leads to higher job
occupancy rates, then the quality and quantity of services may actually increase.

Page 30 of 53



10 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Nonprofits struggle to match wages with government and private sector jobs.

Department and nonprofit stakeholders mentioned competition with City and private sector wages as a
key factor in high turnover and high vacancy.

Government

o For example, a City Health Worker II, which may be comparable to an entry-level case
manager role in many nonprofits (no minimum education; 1 year of prior experience),
has a starting salary of $30.29/hr, and can expect regular wage increases each year.
Most nonprofits interviewed reported entry level case managers in their organizations
earning less than $25/hr, and many less than $20/hr. Additionally, providers report that
some roles may have higher education requirements than those for City Health
Workers.

o Some stakeholders mentioned that entry level staff will work at a nonprofit to gain the
experience needed to qualify for a City role, and this leads to a feeling of “competition”
with City programs.

o Some service providers said they used to be able to compete with City jobs by offering
increased flexibility and benefits like vacation time. However, with the current high
vacancy rates these levels of flexibility are no longer feasible.

Private Sector

o The for-profit Minimum Compensation Ordinance (MCO) threshold is currently
$18.55/hr, and slated to increase to $19.15/hr on July 1, 2022, as compared to the
nonprofit MCO threshold, which is currently $17.34/hr.

o Retail and customer service positions are also now being posted at up to $24/hr for
entry level work that is in many cases less demanding than the direct service work
required of nonprofit workers. Many service providers now feel they are now competing
with these jobs for workers.

o According to nonprofit interviewees, while this has always been a problem across the
sector, the COVID pandemic has made working in direct service roles less appealing to
potential hires. Retail and customer service positions in for-profit companies are often
seen as less difficult and less taxing than direct service work for the same wage.

The Census Bureau reports on Quarterly Workforce Indicators,® including monthly earnings and annual
growth in earnings among “stable” employees, those who worked a full quarter. Nonprofits are
generally classified within the “Social Assistance” sector. According to the most recent trend data
available for San Francisco (first quarter [Q1] of 2019 through Q2 of 2021), monthly stable earnings for
the Social Assistance positions was $2,310. This is the lowest reported monthly stable earnings among
the 61 sectors included in the report,® and well below the median reported monthly stable earnings of
$6,762. This sector saw a 7% annual growth in stable earnings over the two-year period, which is
aligned to the median of 8% across all sectors.™

8 https://www.census.gov/data/developers/data-sets/qwi.html

9 The list includes every industry with at least 500 employees in the city of San Francisco.

0 Among the 61 sectors listed, 13 saw an annual decline in stable earnings. The average annual growth in stable earnings
was 17%.

Page 31 of 53


https://www.census.gov/data/developers/data-sets/qwi.html

11| Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

There are 13 sectors listed with 2019 stable monthly earnings of less than $4,000 (approximately
comparable to a $25/hr job). These include Food Service and Drinking Places, Gasoline Stations,
General Merchandise Stores, Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores and Miscellaneous Store
Retailers, among others. The average annual growth in stable earnings across these lowest-wage
sectors was 14% between 2019 and 2021, with three sectors seeing a decrease and others seeing
increases in wages up to 57% (Food Manufacturing). See Figure 5 for an excerpt, and the Appendix for
the complete list of sectors.

Sector 2019Q1 stable Annual growth in
monthly earnings | stable earnings,
2019Q1 - 2021Q1

Social Assistance $2,310 7%
Food Services and Drinking Places $2,765 -4%
Gasoline Stations $2,768 30%
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Musical Instrument, and $2,902 18%
Book Stores

Food and Beverage Stores $2,983 37%
Amusement, Gambling, and Recreation Industries $3,030 4%
Private Households $3,035 17%
Personal and Laundry Services $3,077 3%
Apparel Manufacturing $3,207 19%
Miscellaneous Store Retailers $3,563 8%
General Merchandise Stores $3,747 -4%
Food Manufacturing $3,775 57%
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores $3,902 -13%

This data indicates two key findings:

Nonprofit workers are among the lowest paid workforce in San Francisco.

Some other low wage sectors have seen significant wage growth recently, creating a further
competitive disadvantage for nonprofits seeking to recruit and retain employees, particularly
entry level staff.

Strategies to Address Wage Pressures

There is significant complexity within the nonprofit sector. The City's typical policy
levers may not be sufficient.

When asked about pain points related to nonprofit wages, responses from all nonprofit and department
representatives varied widely, showing that while there is alignment on certain themes, a single
approach is unlikely to effectively address wage challenges for all organizations. A traditional across-
the-board approach does not have enough nuance to truly address the pain points, while an approach
that uses department-specific interventions has its own drawbacks.

Page 32 of 53



12 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

The City typically uses an array of levers when attempting to address inflationary pressures on contracts:

Minimum Compensation Ordinance (MCO) allocations to address lowest-wage workers

Cost of Doing Business (CODB) allocations to address general inflationary pressures, including
wages

Department-specific wage initiatives to target wage increases using knowledge of specific pain
points within their contract portfolios

Each of these levers has benefits and challenges, addressed in the subsections below. While the City
may need to employ all these options in the coming year, new strategies are also needed to effectively
target the current wage pressures faced by the nonprofit sector.

The MCO can target increases toward the lowest wage workers, but issues of wage
compaction and parity persist.

The MCO is designed to target wage increases toward the lowest-wage workers in an organization. The
City’s FY19-20 MCO allocations included funding for “direct costs” of the MCO, meaning the cost to
bring workers below the MCO wage up to the threshold, as well as “compaction costs” for workers
already at or just above the MCO wage. The FY19-20 MCO analysis considered compaction for workers
earning up to $22/hr, a policy choice based on the amount of funding available.

Benefits of the MCO:

o According to several sources, raising wages among these lowest wage positions across
the sector is the clearest way to apply an equity lens to the wage pressures faced by
nonprofits.

o The annual amount needed to fund “direct costs” is relatively low across the City's
nonprofit portfolio (the Controller's Office estimated direct costs to total $1.4 million for
FY21-22"), though this amount accounts for a marginal increase in wages across the
sector. However, the degree of compaction funded (e.g., up to what wage level) is a
policy choice for the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors. As such, if there is a specific
policy priority to raise the lowest wages (e.g., those under $20/hr or under $25/hr), the
compaction component of the MCO could serve as a vehicle for allocating funds for
this purpose.

Challenges:

o The MCO data from 2019 is three years old, and new data collection would delay
allocation of funds that are urgently needed. Interviewees noted that some nonprofits
with low-wage workforces did not apply in 2019 despite being eligible, meaning using
old allocation methods continues to exclude those grantees.

o The MCO wage threshold applies to all contractors receiving $50,000 or more from the
City regardless of the City’s funding source, but federal and state sources may not
adequately address the direct and compaction costs associated with this local
ordinance, leaving the General Fund or other local sources to cover all costs for these
programs.

" https://openbook.sfgov.org/webreports/details3.aspx?id=2931

Page 33 of 53


https://openbook.sfgov.org/webreports/details3.aspx?id=2931

13 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Setting a “compaction level” (e.g., up to $22/hr) may limit nonprofits from using an
MCO allocation where they are having the most difficulty, such as among more senior
or specialized workers earning $30/hr or more.

Though the MCO in intended to create uniformity in minimum wages across the sector,
interviewees identified that departments may not always implement it in the same way,
creating variance in funding for similar or shared positions.

The Cost of Doing Business (CODB) allocation may not be sufficient to address all
inflationary pressures nonprofits face and is used for more than just wages.

The CODB is typically applied as a percentage of each contract’s General Fund budget, and historically
has been set annually through the City's budget process to address various inflationary pressures,
including wages, within nonprofit contracts.

Benefits:

o

Both nonprofit and department interviewees noted that the CODB is the “easiest” and
most flexible solution to supporting nonprofits adjust their costs as it can be universally
applied.

The CODB can also support other inflationary pressures, such as increases in rent,
insurance or other costs. While many nonprofits choose to apply the CODB to salaries,
it allows flexibility for nonprofits to apply the increase where it is needed most.

The CODB is not limited to lowest-wage employees, meaning it can be used to support
wages for more senior or specialized workers earning $30/hr or more.

The amount of the CODB is a policy choice for the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors
established through the City’s annual budget, and so can be adjusted to address the
present issues.

Challenges:

o

Some of the stakeholders interviewed noted that nonprofits must make difficult choices
with limited revenue, and may not always apply the CODB to wages, even if low wages
are impacting service delivery. A more directive approach to allocations (such as
employing a “cost of living adjustment” directed toward wages) may be needed if the
City wants to make a specific investment toward increasing wage levels.

Across the board adjustments across the entire nonprofit sector would not target
limited funds to specific issues in particular agencies or service areas that are most
acute.

The CODB is calculated as a percentage of General Fund contract values, and so
additional funding is needed to support blended contracts that heavily rely on non-
General Fund sources to ensure parity.

While the CODB has broad across-the-board reach, the need to spread funds across
the $1 billion nonprofit portfolio means that the increase is ultimately spread too thin to
be truly impactful, according to many of the interviewed stakeholders.

In addition to the challenges associated with using the CODB to address wage pressures, City and
nonprofit stakeholders shared operational constraints associated with CODB allocations.

Page 34 of 53



14 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

By the time the CODB is approved in the City's budget (August), many nonprofits have already
planned budgets for the fiscal year. Annual variance in the CODB amount makes it difficult to
plan ahead for salary increases for staff.

The current process of annual allocations creates an administrative burden, as each contract
budget must be modified and approved with the new amount, which can take months to
finalize.

Nonprofits typically do not have the ability to invoice for CODB funding until the contract has
been modified, which can be months into the fiscal year. These contracting processes may
require nonprofits to expend funds with reimbursement delayed for several months or delay
expending funds (e.g., delay wage increases for employees).

Department-specific wage initiatives can directly address pain points, but may cause
issues when nonprofits are funded by multiple departments.

In general, feedback from nonprofit and department staff interviewed for this analysis spoke to the
need for flexible approaches that allows departments to use their knowledge of their grantee portfolios
to allocate funds where there is the greatest need, while also giving nonprofit providers flexibility to fix
the wage problems they are seeing in their organizations without significant restrictions or pre-
determination about where wage-related funds should be applied. Department staff interviewed for this
analysis shared two types of department-specific wage initiatives:

Specialized Programming: Departments may have a key role in funding a highly specialized
service, and discussions and decisions about addressing wages may be best offered by the
department itself rather than Citywide. For example:

o The Human Services Agency (HSA) operates two large contracts related to In-Home
Supportive Services (IHSS), including a contract with the IHSS Public Authority funding
approximately 20,000 independent providers, as well as one with Homebridge funding
approximately $30 million in services. These are highly specialized programs with
complex labor negotiations typically managed in consultation with HSA executives.

Establishing Specific Funding Criteria: Departments may have conducted contract reviews
and developed internal policy priorities for enhanced funding levels, e.g., to better fund services
that are critical to fulfilling a department’s mission. For example:

o HSH previously engaged the Controller's Office to analyze shelter contract funding
models, and as a result of the analysis, allocated additional funding to specific shelter
operators to raise wages to be more in line with other shelter programs.

Each department negotiates with providers on wages, including through multi-year procurements, and
these are also times when departments may engage with individual nonprofits on wage increases.
Department-specific initiatives may mean that nonprofits receive differing amounts of support, and
some may not receive an increase if they do not meet the criteria.

Benefits:

o Nonprofit and department stakeholders noted that each agency has unique concerns
and needs and more nuanced strategies at the department and nonprofit level (rather
than across-the-board) are better suited to addressing these needs.

o Department staff that manage contracts report that they have the best idea where the
pain points are greatest among their portfolios.

Page 35 of 53



15 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Challenges:

o In FY20-21, 296 nonprofit suppliers (47% of all nonprofit suppliers) received funding
from more than one department, often for similar services. Department-specific
initiatives mean a portion of the City-funded workers may receive a pay increase, while
other City-funded workers may not.

» For example, in FY20-21, HSH offered an incentive payment for front-line
workers across several of its programs. According to both HSH and several
nonprofits, these funds were difficult for nonprofits to deploy to staff since only
HSH provided the funding. In one case, a nonprofit used its reserves to pay for
incentives for staff in similar roles funded by other City departments (e.g., HSA),
while in another case, a nonprofit shared that they were unable to provide the
incentive to staff due to the parity issues they faced.

o Department-specific initiatives require research and individualized negotiations with
nonprofits. This adds burden to both department and nonprofit staff, and at least one
department reported having insufficient staff capacity and lack of structured contract
management systems to allow them to conduct the level of work and negotiations
needed for such an initiative.

Limitations to the City’'s Role in Addressing Wage Pressures

The City cannot mandate wage levels, but recommended salary baselines or floors for
certain positions could help target increases.

Numerous City and nonprofit staff indicated that it is generally inappropriate for City department staff
to specify wages for positions funded by the City. In one case, DCYF attempted to establish a wage for a
key position in a certain program to support recruitment and retention for the role as well as parity with
the same position at other nonprofits. This created numerous downstream impacts for the nonprofit
service provider, including a large pay gap between the highest and lowest funded position at the
organization.

Interviews with stakeholders identified numerous constraints that adds complexity to implementation of
wage increases within nonprofit organizations:

Among nonprofits that participated in the focus group, five indicated that their staff are
unionized, and wages are established through labor negotiations.

Additionally, seven participants indicated that their organization uses pre-established wage
bands, and raising wages for one group of workers would mean re-working the wage structure
for the entire organization.

Six participants noted that in addition to cross-departmental services, they also have services
funded by non-City sources, such as positions outside of San Francisco. These organizations
could not raise wages across City-funded contracts without also raising wages for non-City-
funded workers, but may not receive the funding to do so.

Nonprofits have established wage ranges that make sense for the organizational hierarchy, and
changes to components of the organizational structure can destabilize the nonprofit.

While mandating wages levels for City-funded positions is not recommended, departments and
nonprofits interviewed identified the option of setting floors or baselines for key positions, with actual

Page 36 of 53



16 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

adoption of that floor or baseline at the discretion of the nonprofit service provider. See Opportunities
for Further Work section below for more on this topic.

Mixed funding sources create operational constraints.

Special allocations may be needed to smooth wage adjustments across blended contracts. Most
departments that were interviewed have contracts with blended funding sources, including with State
and Federal dollars. In many cases, the department blends funding on the backend, meaning nonprofits
may be doing similar services but have varying funding sources for them based on department
discretion. For parity, departments must then use General Fund dollars to make increases across
grantees regardless of funding source, but this is not always feasible. For example, HIV programming at
the Department of Public Health (DPH) is heavily funded by federal sources, and there are insufficient
General Fund dollars to subsidize the level of wage increases provided to other contracts in the
portfolio.

Interviews also identified numerous other operational challenges.

Fringe costs are also increasing, but some departments have a cap on nonprofit fringe (e.g.,
20%) whereas City employee fringe rates are typically budgeted at 40% or more.

Indirect rates, typically capped at 15% of the total contract value, are typically used to fund
back-office staff. Many of these back-office positions are also difficult to fill, such as payroll
clerks, finance staff, development staff, etc. The amount of the CODB that can be applied to this
small share of the contract is not substantial enough to fund true wage increases for these
positions, which are essential for the operation of the organization.

Legacy contracts may be more difficult to fix. Some departments have long-standing contracts
with nonprofit providers for key services, such as housing programs. Wage rates were set for
these programs many years ago and are often far below the norm for newer services. To truly
address the wage issues in these contracts could require re-procurement or other significant
increases to those contracts.

Structured Citywide data about nonprofit wages is limited, making it difficult to
identify issues and develop targeted solutions.

In most cases, City departments use cost reimbursement budget templates for nonprofit grant
agreements. These templates specify wages and FTEs of key positions funded through that contract.
However, just one department, DCYF, uses a contract management database that allows for structured
data to be extracted regarding those positions, wages and FTEs.

A thorough review of nonprofit wages funded through City contracts would require opening each
contract and manually extracting wage information. The $1.2 billion in spending in FY20-21 occurred
across approximately 3,000 active contracts. This gap in structured data limits the City's ability to spot
issues among shared positions, and to appropriately target strategies to address those issues.

Beyond a gap in structured data about City-funded positions, the City does regularly gather information
from nonprofits about non-City sources of funding, which can lead to gaps in understanding the
impacts of City funding strategies.

Page 37 of 53



17 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Equity is a key consideration when identifying strategies to address wage pressures. Through the
interviews, respondents explored three overlapping lenses to use when addressing equity.

Equity Lens: Populations Served

Are organizations that serve specific populations receiving equitable access to any funds
distributed to mitigate wage pressures?

Both HSA and HSH reported comparing demographic data of clients served by an organization
to employee wage levels at that agency as a tool in prioritizing nonprofits to receive wage
adjustments in the past.

Equity Lens: Nonprofit Workforce

Does the workforce delivering services represent the community they serve and our diverse city,
and are the staff compensated equitably in comparison to other organizations?

The demographics of a City-funded organization’s workforce is also a key equity consideration
that ties in closely with population served. When distributing funding to address wage
pressures, the demographics of the workers who receive that funding should be a measure of
equitable distribution.

Though there is very little City data on demographics of the City-funded workforce, gathering
such data should be a key area of future work. Anecdotally, providers report that BIPOC
individuals make up a large portion of their low-wage workforce, raising concerns about
equitable pay. Providers also report that many staff members have lived experience that
provides skill and expertise for this work, raising concerns that this lived experience is
undervalued.

A sexual orientation and gender identity (SOGI) lens may also be needed, as some providers
suggest that BIPOC women make up large portions of specific workforces, such as in the
childcare sector.

Equity Lens: Nonprofit Leadership

Are organizations led by people of color and/or people representing the communities served
receiving equitable employee compensation through grant agreements?

Understanding who has founded and runs organizations that are funded by the City is also an
important equity lens. Many stakeholders mentioned that it is more challenging for smaller
organizations to apply for and manage City contracts. However, people of color are more likely
to be represented in the leadership of smaller organizations. Understanding the organizations’
leadership demographics and using that to evaluate funding distribution helps understand how
resources can be equitably divided.

Recent research on the demographics of nonprofit management and boards has found that a
racial leadership gap persists across the nonprofit sector.” Some providers noted that smaller
nonprofits are more likely to have BIPOC leadership. While limited data exists on the correlation
between a nonprofit's financial size and leadership demographics, one national source reports

2 "Race to Lead Series,” Building Movement Project. https://racetolead.org/

Page 38 of 53



18 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

that while BIPOC men represent about 10% of executive directors across all sizes of
organizations (from below $500,000 to above $8.5 million), both BIPOC and White women are
less likely to be executive directors at the largest organizations (those over $2 million).™

Strategies to increase equity may include both wage and non-wage initiatives

Through interviews with nonprofits and department staff, participants identified the following strategies
to support equitable pay levels across nonprofits:

Providing premium pay for staff with language capabilities
Providing premium pay for staff with strong community knowledge/community ties
Providing professional development opportunities and mentoring to support career
advancement
Reducing the pay gap between the lowest-wage workers and leadership
Increasing support for smaller organizations navigating procurement processes
Developing pathways to leadership within organizations for the target populations and people
with lived experience
Integrating equity considerations into evaluative criteria for City funding, including:
o Provision of bilingual/bicultural/lived experience differentials
o Requirements for resident voice to be included in programming (through board
membership, advisory groups, etc.)
o Criteria evaluating to what extent an agency’s leaderships reflects the populations
served
Housing support for nonprofit workers with a minimum of 5-10 years of experience working in
nonprofits in San Francisco

Through interviews, stakeholders mentioned concepts or ideas that cannot be implemented
immediately, but merit further consideration as long-term strategies to address nonprofit wages.

Surveying, data collection and analysis

Most departments do not have structured data on wages for contracted positions; contract budgets are
often saved as PDFs in a file system. This makes it difficult to do any robust analysis of the City's impact
on nonprofit wages and the true costs of the services that the City funds. Many stakeholders suggested
expanding data collection, e.g., via a nonprofit survey, so that the City and nonprofits have a clearer
picture of wages and costs at the nonprofit level and across departments. Some ideas include:

Surveying to gather full agency financial data, including other funding sources, and wage levels
across funding sources and positions.

Surveying to gather demographic information about the nonprofit workforce and leadership,
and conducting equity analyses about wage levels across service types and service populations.
Targeted work with organizations who are consistently underspending on contracts in order to
get a fuller picture of what their challenges are.

3 The Center for Effective Philanthropy. https://cep.org/reflecting-on-leadership-diversity-in-todays-nonprofit-sector/

Page 39 of 53



19 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Analyzing wage structures across each department’s portfolio.

Analyzing job titles and categorization of job classifications in order to better target wage
recommendations.

Establishing benchmarks for wage levels among specific job classifications to inform nonprofits
and departments about market standards.

Creating Citywide wage floors or baselines

Wage floors or baselines were proposed by numerous groups, and are being implemented in some key
areas already. For example:

The Corporation for Supportive Housing study commissioned by HSH recommended
establishing a $28/hr wage baseline for case manager roles in supportive housing. HSH
committed to funding a $25/hr baseline and moving up to $28/hr in the coming year.

The Supportive Housing Provider Network (SHPN) identified a variety of recommended
baselines in its survey of members noted above. For example, members recommended a
baseline of $22/hr for front desk clerks, $23/hr for janitors, $25/hr for maintenance workers, and
$36/hr for property managers. However, SHPN noted that these wage floors attempted to
account for the impact of wage compaction in organizations, as well as what might be possible
in its advocacy efforts for the year, and so should not be considered an “appropriate” wage for
these positions.

The Service Provider Working Group, a coalition of youth development organizations, identified
a proposed baseline of $25/hr for all roles, aligning this to the “living wage” for a single adult in
San Francisco, as calculated by the MIT Living Wage Calculator.™

The assumptions with such baselines, according to recommendations from nonprofits interviewed, is
that they provide availability of funding at sustainable levels, and allow nonprofits to make the choice
for how to allocate that funding across the organization. However, this proposed flexibility creates a lack
of standardization which may perpetuate inequities and parity concerns.

While some targeted initiatives related to wage floors or baselines may occur, such as the HSH work,
broader adoption of this strategy requires a cross-departmental lens to ensure parity, and requires
more research and benchmarking on roles, skill level, and market drivers across the sector. Broad
adoption of baselines is not likely feasible in the short term.

Cross-departmental wage initiatives

In interviews, department staff speculated about options for building parity across departments for
positions and programs that are shared, but currently no initiatives are underway or planned. While
several ideas were proposed, there would be significant challenges to implementing these proposals, as
outlined below.

Though the most complex of the options discussed, cross-departmental initiatives are most likely to
have the most significant impact on addressing wage pressures for specific contractors. Ideas for cross-
departmental initiatives, as proposed by various interviewed stakeholders, include:

4 https://livingwage.mit.edu/counties/06075; updated to $28/hr as of January 2022.

Page 40 of 53


https://livingwage.mit.edu/counties/06075

20 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Benchmarking wage ranges for key positions and creating standards (e.g., “floors”) for certain
functional roles that many departments fund.

|dentify shared thresholds or floors for positions that departments use in procurements.
Coordinating on wage allocation strategies for specific shared contractors.

Coordinating on wage strategies for specific shared program areas (e.g., services in or related to
supportive housing which may be funded by multiple departments).

Despite these benefits, certain challenges persist, making this option difficult to accomplish in the
current year.

Nonprofit job titles and position descriptions vary, and categorization of payment by role would
be difficult.

Wages are funded by individual contracts. Many nonprofits have multiple contracts with each
department they receive funding from. Opportunities to negotiate wages often comes through
the establishment of new contracts, and reopening numerous existing contracts for wage
negotiations is burdensome for both departments and nonprofits.

Per FY20-21 spending data, 47% of nonprofits received payments from two or more
departments, and at least 46 nonprofits received payments from five or more. Several
nonprofits received payments from 10 or 11 departments. Creating complete alignment across
all departments would is unlikely to be feasible.

As one way to make cross-departmental initiatives more feasible, five City departments conduct the
majority of nonprofit contracting, and creating alignment among these departments on wage initiatives
could have significant benefits.

Updated procurement processes: more guidance and more centralization

Many departments mentioned that the City has limited visibility into how much it actually costs to fund
a service (as opposed to a contract). Stakeholders reported that low indirect rates mean that a contract
with the City cannot cover the full costs of running a City-contracted program. Ideas for mitigating this
issue during procurement processes include:

Conducting more internal analysis of the actual cost of achieving a goal set by the City rather
than relying on nonprofits to figure out how to make it work within a budget constraint.
Funding fewer nonprofits at higher rates.

Providing more guidance during the procurement process. For example, most departments
issue solicitations stating the total funding amount available but do not say how many
organizations, programs, or outcomes they are expecting to fund. Most departments do not
give guidance during procurements for wage ranges for positions.

Another key issue that stakeholders pointed to is the decentralization of procurement processes. Many
nonprofits are funded by multiple departments; in FY21, over 40% (362) of nonprofit providers had
contracts with more than one department, with 112 nonprofits who contracted with 4 or more
departments. Additionally, many departments fund similar services. The lack of centralized guidance
and minimal opportunities for collaboration mean that departments have limited visibility into what
other departments are funding and how. This results in a patchwork of uneven costs, differing
processes, and an overload of information. Suggestions included providing more guidance or

Page 41 of 53



21| Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

centralizing information to make it easier for departments to collaborate and make procurement
processes easier for nonprofits to follow.

Wage-related and non-wage strategies to support hiring and retention

Many department and nonprofit stakeholders discussed ways to increase wages for specific skillsets.
They also discussed the desire and need for recruitment and retention strategies that go beyond wages.
A brief list of strategies mentioned by one or more respondents includes:

Premium pay for multi-lingual staff or staff who reflect the community they are serving

Hazard pay for front-line staff in high-risk settings

Transportation allowances for staff commuting from far away

Professional development opportunities and funding to support professional growth
Investments in trauma-informed mental health trainings and supports for frontline nonprofit
workers whose jobs entail regular exposure to trauma

City-backed public service loan reimbursement for nonprofit positions not covered by federal
public service loan forgiveness (such as case workers)

Better staffing ratios for case workers so that the workload feels more manageable
Reassessment of legacy contracts based on modality of service, and developing strategies to
restructure contracts with market-rate wages

Develop a workforce pipeline, such as a “Nonprofit Workforce Academy,” that regularly assesses
the greatest workforce needs and develops certification programs for youth and adult
Incorporate a hiring and retention line item in contract budgets that can be flexibly deployed by
the provider to any of a number of specified eligible uses, including wage equity initiatives such
as wage increases for workers not on City contracts or other uses such as those listed above

1. Wage issues faced by the City's nonprofit contractors are of a magnitude that standard
inflationary increases to contracts will not address them. The City must identify strategies
above a standard inflationary CODB.

2. Needed investments are likely to be significant, and it is unlikely that the City can afford to
make investments that solve for these wage constraints in a single budget year. The City
should plan for this need as part of a multi-year strategy.

3. The current wage pressures experienced by nonprofit contractors represent a complex array of
issues that will require multiple, complementary strategies to address. Some may need to be
implemented over several years. However, to address immediate needs, the City should
develop several short-term options that could be delivered simultaneously in the coming
budget, as described below.

Page 42 of 53



22 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

a. Apply a Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) above the Cost of Doing Business
(CODB) allocation.

The City may also consider setting a policy priority to apply the COLA primarily for
lowest wage workers, but this prioritization should also acknowledge that wage
pressures exist for mid-level and management positions as well.

For a sense of cost and scale, we estimate a 2% COLA to cost approximately $8 million
across General Fund contracts Citywide, with this cost assumed in addition to a CODB.
See Appendix B for additional cost scenarios. The estimates here and in the Appendix
are meant for illustration purposes only and do not reflect a recommended COLA or
CODB amount.

b. Develop specific budget allocations to address wage pressures in key service areas
with planned expansion.

The City has adopted several policy priorities over the last several years. The Our City,
Our Home (OCOH) Fund increases investments in housing and services for people
experiencing homelessness. Mental Health San Francisco (MHSF) expands and improves
the delivery of behavioral health services. Proposition C (“Baby C"), passed in June 2018
and approved in 2021, invests $146 million annually in childcare in San Francisco. To
fully realize the goals of these City priorities, additional funding will be needed to
support hiring and retention of staff among nonprofit partners implementing related
services.

For example, HSH has developed several proposals to address wage pressures, equity
and worker retention:

HSH invested $1.7 million in the current year and proposed a further $3 million
in General Fund and OCOH funding in the budget year to enhance support
services and frontline worker wages in Family, Youth and Adult permanent
supportive housing (PSH) programs. This proposal raises the floor on case
manager wages to a baseline of $28/hr across nearly 10,000 units of permanent
supportive housing.

HSH is also proposing $12 million annually in General Fund and OCOH funding
starting in FY22-23 to reduce case management staffing ratios in legacy PSH
sites that are severely underfunded relative to newer sites, both to increase the
quality of services for tenants and to improve working conditions for nonprofit
staff.

These two proposals are meant as an initial investment to help ensure the
success of a significant planned expansion of homeless housing, while bringing
underfunded legacy programs into closer alignment with the actual cost to
provide high-quality services to a highly vulnerable client population. Additional
investments at a similar scale are also needed in PSH property management
operations and shelter operations.

Page 43 of 53



23 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

The Office of Early Childcare and Education (OECE) announced a similar initiative to
raise wages for childcare workers as part of “Baby C."”

The proposal aims to raise wages for early educators up to a $28/hr floor by
2025, increasing each worker’s salary by $8,000-$30,000 annually.

Up to $60 million annually has been allocated for this proposal, which also
includes expanded benefits.

As a longer-term strategy, the Controller's Office is engaging in a staffing analysis of the
behavioral health system as mandated through the MHSF ordinance, and will propose
recommendations in the coming year.

4. To ensure nonprofit contractors have stable, planned funding increases to address inflationary
pressures in contracts, including for wages, the City should transition from an annual CODB
allocation to a process where multi-year contracts include a planned increase (or
“embedded escalator”) in subsequent years.

Embedding an annual increase in multi-year contracts may address operational challenges
described in the Findings section by:

Providing more certainty in nonprofit budget planning by providing the amount of the
increase well in advance of the fiscal year.

Easing the administrative burden by reducing the number of times multi-year contracts
must be reopened and modified (though some contracts will still require modification
during the year for other reasons).

Allowing nonprofits to invoice immediately for current year salary increases without
contracting delays or incurring unreimbursed costs.

Embedded escalators shouldn't preclude adding additional funding to specific contracts or
across contracts when needed. Similarly, contract amounts may still be subject to budget
reductions in times of deficit.

The City should create an implementation plan for rolling out a revised CODB policy that
considers key operational issues such as:

How to address contracts with blended funding. This recommendation continues to
focus on General Fund sources for the CODB, and there is still concern about equitably
distributing funding, particularly for departments and contracts that rely heavily on
State and Federal dollars.

Whether to use a negotiated increase or a flat percentage across all contracts, and
implications for this policy, such as how to calculate the base and percentage increases
when new funding is added to a contract.

Roll-out of policy across new and existing contracts.

> "Mayor Breed Announces Landmark Pay Raise Initiative for Early Educators in City-Funded Programs.” April 28, 2022.
<https://sfmayor.org/article/mayor-breed-announces-landmark-pay-raise-initiative-early-educators-city-funded-
programs>

Page 44 of 53



24 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

5. The City should develop a comprehensive plan to address the ongoing wage pressures
faced by nonprofit contractors, and to make structural overhauls where needed to ensure
equitable wage levels for City-funded services.

The City should gather robust data on wages across programs, organizations and sectors,
including demographics of the current workforce and the leadership of organizations. A
centralized survey of nonprofit contractors should be administered by the Controller’s Office in
the coming fiscal year to support enhanced analysis and planning for future wage-related
initiatives.

The City should engage nonprofit partners in a collaborative process to analyze gathered data
and identify policy proposals to implement over the coming fiscal years. The City may also
consider engaging philanthropic funders interested in contributing to a joint strategy. Policy
proposals may include setting wage floors in future solicitations, cross-departmental alignment
on wage rates, review and potential restructuring or re-solicitation of legacy programs, and
solutions to address race equity and gender equity in pay across providers and services.

The City should incorporate into the plan considerations of other nonprofit sustainability needs.
Stakeholders have proposed efforts around indirect rates, workforce pipelines, and non-wage
strategies to support hiring, retention and equity. The plan should prioritize and stage key
initiatives over subsequent fiscal years.

Page 45 of 53



25 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

The summarized findings in this analysis result from a series of policy group meetings, informational
meetings, interviews, and structured focus group sessions with City staff and nonprofit service providers.

Policy Group

Beginning December 2021, the Controller's Office convened a Policy Group to set direction and propose
policy strategies around nonprofit sustainability. The group includes finance and contracting leadership
from several of the largest grant-making departments, as well as representatives of nonprofit
organizations and advocacy groups.

City Departments Nonprofits
City Administrator’s Office Compass Family Services
Controller's Office Delivering Innovations in Supportive
Department of Children, Youth, and Their Housing (DISH)
Families Dolores Street Community Services
Department of Homelessness and Hospitality House
Supportive Housing Larkin Street Youth Services
Department of Public Health PRC
Human Services Agency Swords to Plowshares
Mayor's Office of Housing and Third Street Youth

Community Development
Advocacy Groups
Homeless Emergency Service Providers
Association
San Francisco Human Services Network
Supportive Housing Provider Network

Interviews and Informational Meetings

The Controller's Office conducted interviews and informational meetings with the following City
departments and nonprofit service providers:

City Departments Nonprofits
Department of Children, Youth, and Their Conard House
Families Delivering Innovations in Supportive
Department of Homelessness and Housing (DISH)
Supportive Housing Homerise
Department of Public Health Swords to Plowshares
Human Services Agency Tenderloin Housing Clinic
Mayor’s Office of Housing and Tenderloin Neighborhood Development
Community Development Corporation

Office of Economic and Workforce
Development

Page 46 of 53



26 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Focus Group

The Controller’s Office conducted an interactive focus group with participants from nonprofit
organizations across the human service sector. Attendees represented organizations of varying sizes,
with 5 having fewer than 50 full-time equivalent staff (FTEs), 4 having between 50 and 200 FTEs, and 3
having more than 200 FTEs. Organizations fell into one or more of the following categories: behavioral
health treatment/clinical services, homelessness/housing/shelter services, youth services, and/or general
human services. Attendees included the following service providers:

AIDS Legal Resource Center Homerise

Bayanihan Equity Center Huckleberry Youth Programs
Catholic Charities Mission Neighborhood Health Center
Conard House North Beach Citizens

Edgewood Children’s Services Safe and Sound

Friends of the Children

Materials Reviewed
The Controller's Office reviewed the following informational materials and publications:

Analysis conducted by the Supportive Housing Provider Network on property management job
roles and wage levels

Analysis conducted by the Service Providers Working Group on wage levels among nonprofits
service children, youth and families

Analysis conducted by the Corporation for Supportive Housing on wage levels associated with
Permanent Supportive Housing case management staff

Analysis from DCYF on wages by position type for FY21-22 contractors

Past surveying, analysis, and implementation of MCO allocations

Data on supplier payments for FY20-21

The "Race to Lead"” series, created by the Building Movement Project. https://racetolead.org
“Reflecting on Leadership Diversity in Today's Nonprofit Sector,” the Center for Effective
Philanthropy. https://cep.org/reflecting-on-leadership-diversity-in-todays-nonprofit-sector,

“A National Imperative: Joining Forces to Strengthen Human Services in America,” Alliance for
Strong Families and Communities. https://www.alliancel.org/web/resources/pubs/national-
imperative-joining-forces-strengthen-human-services-america.aspx

Page 47 of 53


https://racetolead.org/
https://cep.org/reflecting-on-leadership-diversity-in-todays-nonprofit-sector/
https://www.alliance1.org/web/resources/pubs/national-imperative-joining-forces-strengthen-human-services-america.aspx
https://www.alliance1.org/web/resources/pubs/national-imperative-joining-forces-strengthen-human-services-america.aspx

27 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

While limited data makes it difficult to estimate an exact cost of any of the recommendations, we've
used the data that is available to estimate the financial impact of certain policy proposals.

Cost Scenario 1: Implementing a COLA on top of the CODB

One recommendation is to add a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) on top of a CODB allocation. Each
year, the Mayor's Office requests departments provide the amount of General Fund sources attributed
to nonprofit contracts and uses that information to estimate a CODB base amount. In the table below,
we use the base CODB amount to estimate a CODB at the estimated inflation amount for the year,
3.25%.® We've estimated the amount of contract expenditures attributable to salaries at 55%." In the
figure, we've estimated several options for a COLA ranging from 1% to 5%, which could be applied on
top of a CODB allocation. These estimates are meant for illustration purposes only and do not reflect a
recommended COLA or CODB amount.

Policy 1% 2% 3% 4% 5%
CODB at Estimated
Inflation (3.25%) $23,664,827 $23,664,827 $23,664,827 $23,664,827 $23,664,827
COLA (variable) $4,004,817 $8,009,634 $12,014,450 $16,019,267 $20,024,084
Total $27,669,643 $31,674,460 $35,679,277 $39,684,094 $43,688,911

The benefit of the CODB is its flexibility in use. Some nonprofits may use the CODB solely to fund non-
wage elements of their contracts, while others use the CODB to fund a mix of wage and non-wage
expenses. Policy choices should account for this variability.

In one scenario using this table, we can assume that a policy choice to apply a 3.25% CODB allocation
in alignment with inflation plus another 2% COLA on General Fund contracts would cost approximately
$31.7 million. In this scenario, a nonprofit receiving this allocation may apply the entire allocation to
wages to make more structural impacts on salaries. Another nonprofit may continue to need the CODB
for non-wage inflationary pressures, but is able to use the COLA portion of the allocation to adjust
wages of certain positions.

Cost Scenario 2: Increasing lowest wage workers to $25/hr, estimated using historical
MCO data

Using historical MCO data, we can estimate the cost of raising all funded positions under $25/hr up to
$25/hr and allowing for compaction costs up to $30/hr.

To do this, we applied the wage data from the 2019 MCO survey and assumed the lowest earners had
been adjusted up to the current MCO wage ($17.34/hr). For the remaining brackets we assumed that

® The consumer price index (CPl) amount for FY22-23 is estimated at 3.25% per the March update of the Controller's
Budget Outlook. Other measures of inflation may vary, such as measures of the prior year increases.
7 Departments surveyed estimated a range from 45% to 66% of contract costs attributable to salaries.

Page 48 of 53


https://sfcontroller.org/sites/default/files/Documents/Budget/March%20Update%20FINAL.pdf

28 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

other FTEs received the wage adjustments allocated to account for compaction costs (a $1increase for
FTEs from $16.50-$18.50 and a $0.75 increase for those making $18.50-$30.00). The figure below
estimates the cost of raising any positions still earning under $25/hr up to $25/hr and providing $1/hr
wage increases to those in the $25-$30/hr range to account for compaction. To estimate the cost of
raising those under $25/hr up to $25/hr, we assumed that the number of positions are uniformly
distributed within each bracket. The total cost is reflected in the table below:

Estimated Starting Wage Change in Hourly  Estimated FTEs  Annualized Cost

Range Wage
$17.34 S7.66 1,000 $15,931,207
$17.35 - $25.00 $0.01 - 57.65 1947 $20,751,250
$25.00 - $30.00 $1.00 662 $1,376,835
Total Annualized Cost $38,059,292

Cost Scenario 3: Increasing lowest wage workers in child and family services to
$25/hr, estimated using DCYF salary data

DCYF manages a contract database containing robust salary data for grantees. We can use that
information to estimate the cost of raising low wage worker salaries. DCYF funds 387 full-time
equivalent staff members (FTEs) with an hourly wage under $25/hr. We estimated the cost to increase
salaries for all of those positions to $25/hr, and to apply a potential compaction policy of $1/hr for all
FTEs between $25/hr and $30/hr.

Number of FTEs Annualized Amount
Cost of raising adult wages to $25/hr 387 $2,978,403
Cost of S1/hr compaction policy 275 $571,711
Total Potential Cost 662 $3,550,114

There are numerous caveats to this scenario. As noted in the findings above, it is not generally feasible
to create an across-the-board wage increase like this due to the complexities of individual nonprofit
budgets and business models. This scenario does not account for the current tiering between positions,
which would increase the costs. This estimate only accounts for salaries within DCYF's contracts, and
only the portion of salaries funded by DCYF (i.e., costs are based on annual hours attributed to a
contract rather than a head count of staff in each position). Given that many staff are funded by
multiple contracts and grants, the cost to apply this scenario to positions as opposed to funded FTEs is
likely much higher.

'8 Note that the number of FTEs reflected in this memo may not exactly match the number of FTEs reflected in the MCO
memo, due to different methodologies and recalculation of some data since it was published.

Page 49 of 53



29 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

However, this scenario provides an estimated annual cost of raising wages for DCYF-funded positions
as a way to estimate possible costs of creating new baselines for wages, should that be an option in the
future, and these estimates could serve as a proxy for the cost of specific funding recommendations
targeting childcare and family services.

Cost Scenario 4: Wage floors for specific positions, using SHPN cost estimates

The Supportive Housing Provider's Network (SHPN) conducted a survey among its membership to
estimate the cost of targeting wage increases at roles that have been particularly hard to fill: Case
Managers, Desk Clerks, Janitors, and Maintenance Workers. SHPN proposed a wage floor for each role
and calculated the annual cost to raise wages for HSH-funded positions in their partner organizations.
The calculation assumes all reported positions are in each agency’s lowest reported wage for the job
category, so likely overstates the cost to raise wages to the proposed base. However, the results provide
a benchmark for the cost to apply a base wage for these positions.

Position Category # HSH-Funded FTEs Target Base Hourly Total Annual Baselined
Wage Funding Needed

Case Managers 232 S 28.00 $ 4,022,185

Desk Clerks 337 S 22.00 S 4,244,458

Janitors 156 S 23.00 $ 2,594,249

Maintenance 143 S 25.00 $ 2,290,598
Workers

Total 868 $ 13,151,490

These calculations suggest that the maximum cost of implementing wage floors for key positions for
only HSH-funded supportive housing organizations (a total of 868 FTEs across 11 organizations) is over
$13 million annually.

Page 50 of 53



30 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

The Census Bureau produces Quarterly Workforce Indicators a set of 32 economic indicators including
employment, job creation, wages, hiring, and other measures.

The table below shows industry wages trends in San Francisco, from the first quarter of 2019 through
the first quarter of 2021 (the most recent available). Industries are sorted by average monthly wage for
stable employees — workers who worked the full quarter. The percentage change is the annualized two-

year change in pay for stable employees.

The wage numbers are monthly averages which could be affected by high numbers of part-time
workers. The list includes every industry with at least 500 employees in the city. Some of the anomalies
(very high wages for accommodations and transit workers) are because of the IPOs of Airbnb and Uber.

Sector 2019Q1 stable | Annual growth | Employment,
monthly in stable 2019Q1
earnings earnings,

2019Q1-2021Q1
Social Assistance $2,310 7% 35,718
Food Services and Drinking Places $2,765 -4% 63,071
Gasoline Stations $2,768 30% 804
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Musical Instrument, $2,902 18% 1,594
and Book Stores
Food and Beverage Stores $2,983 37% 9,447
Amusement, Gambling, and Recreation $3,030 4% 5,438
Industries
Private Households $3,035 17% 3,271
Personal and Laundry Services $3,077 3% 10,088
Apparel Manufacturing $3,207 19% 721
Miscellaneous Store Retailers $3,563 8% 3,217
General Merchandise Stores $3,747 -4% 4,803
Food Manufacturing $3,775 57% 2,696
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores $3,902 -13% 6,999
Truck Transportation $4,001 101% 821
Nursing and Residential Care Facilities $4,257 3% 5,969
Museums, Historical Sites, and Similar $4,566 13% 3,365
Institutions
Health and Personal Care Stores $4,590 -15% 4,810
Repair and Maintenance $4,810 7% 2,140
Educational Services $4,833 5% 18,541
Furniture and Related Product Manufacturing $4,843 12% 513
Building Material and Garden Equipment and $4,974 45% 1,729

Supplies Dealers

Page 51 of 53



31| Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Sector 2019Q1 stable | Annual growth | Employment,
monthly in stable 2019Q1
earnings earnings,

2019Q1-2021Q1
Scenic and Sightseeing Transportation $5,001 202% 1,005
Furniture and Home Furnishings Stores $5,292 14% 1,676
Beverage and Tobacco Product Manufacturing $5,294 -71% 762
Religious, Grantmaking, Civic, Professional, and $5,700 9% 14,687
Similar Organizations
Couriers and Messengers $5,735 47% 3,726
Printing and Related Support Activities $5,888 45% 553
Performing Arts, Spectator Sports, and Related $5,922 34% 7,085
Industries
Motor Vehicle and Parts Dealers $5,976 61% 1,379
Accommodation $6,368 199% 19,714
Administrative and Support Services $6,762 1% 39,482
Ambulatory Health Care Services $7,462 16% 20,451
Merchant Wholesalers, Nondurable Goods $7,635 32% 6,881
Specialty Trade Contractors $7,833 14% 11,276
Electronics and Appliance Stores $7,863 -13% 1,340
Hospitals $8,108 5% 9,171
Support Activities for Transportation $8,261 1% 1,461
Broadcasting (except Internet) $8,875 7% 2,770
Heavy and Civil Engineering Construction $9,247 7% 1,711
Nonstore Retailers $9,248 -35% 7,103
Motion Picture and Sound Recording Industries $9,299 -1% 1,996
Miscellaneous Manufacturing $9,320 -31% 679
Air Transportation $9,512 25% 1,974
Construction of Buildings $9,736 23% 10,334
Monetary Authorities-Central Bank $10,270 18% 978
Real Estate $10,868 5% 12,828
Merchant Wholesalers, Durable Goods $11,286 1% 6,018
Waste Management and Remediation Services $11,382 -11% 1,769
Rental and Leasing Services $11,465 5% 2,666
Wholesale Electronic Markets and Agents and $14,236 -22% 1,856
Brokers
Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services $15,522 9% 139,695
Insurance Carriers and Related Activities $15,779 5% 7,722
Management of Companies and Enterprises $16,351 2% 22,180
Publishing Industries (except Internet) $16,592 3% 10,401
Computer and Electronic Product $19,561 -18% 4,163
Manufacturing
Data Processing, Hosting, and Related Services $20,942 28% 12,028

Page 52 of 53



32 | Memo: Addressing Nonprofit Wage Pressures — May 4, 2022

Sector 2019Q1 stable | Annual growth | Employment,
monthly in stable 2019Q1
earnings earnings,

2019Q1-2021Q1
Credit Intermediation and Related Activities $22,363 14% 20,702
Other Information Services $25,069 29% 18,034
Telecommunications $26,915 22% 2,514
Securities, Commodity Contracts, and Other $45,807 8% 16,922
Financial Investments and Related Activities
Transit and Ground Passenger Transportation $67,956 -75% 11,352

Page 53 of 53



	2. RC Agenda 1.19.2023
	DRAFT Minutes - 10.20.2022
	Women 1st Roster 1.19.2023
	LPP Roster 1.19.2023
	DA Roster 1.19.2023
	Roster 1 FULL-COUNCIL-1.19.2023
	RC 2023 calendar
	2023 Meeting Calendar

	Reentry Non-Profit Wages
	Reentry Non-Profit Wages

	Controllers-Nonprofit-Wage-Analysis-FINAL-5.4.22
	Executive Summary
	Summary of Key Findings
	Recommendations

	Overview
	Scale of City Spending on Nonprofit Contracts

	Summary Findings and Analysis
	Assessing the Scale and Impact of the Issue
	Below-market wages in mid-level positions lead to difficulty hiring and retaining staff.
	High turnover and difficulty hiring impacts client services and destabilizes organizations.
	Nonprofits struggle to match wages with government and private sector jobs.

	Strategies to Address Wage Pressures
	There is significant complexity within the nonprofit sector. The City’s typical policy levers may not be sufficient.
	The MCO can target increases toward the lowest wage workers, but issues of wage compaction and parity persist.
	The Cost of Doing Business (CODB) allocation may not be sufficient to address all inflationary pressures nonprofits face and is used for more than just wages.
	Department-specific wage initiatives can directly address pain points, but may cause issues when nonprofits are funded by multiple departments.

	Limitations to the City’s Role in Addressing Wage Pressures
	The City cannot mandate wage levels, but recommended salary baselines or floors for certain positions could help target increases.
	Mixed funding sources create operational constraints.
	Interviews also identified numerous other operational challenges.
	Structured Citywide data about nonprofit wages is limited, making it difficult to identify issues and develop targeted solutions.


	Applying an Equity Lens to nonprofit wages
	Equity Lens: Populations Served
	Equity Lens: Nonprofit Workforce
	Equity Lens: Nonprofit Leadership
	Strategies to increase equity may include both wage and non-wage initiatives

	Opportunities for Further Work on Wages
	Surveying, data collection and analysis
	Creating Citywide wage floors or baselines
	Cross-departmental wage initiatives
	Updated procurement processes: more guidance and more centralization
	Wage-related and non-wage strategies to support hiring and retention

	Recommendations
	Appendix A: Methodology
	Policy Group
	Interviews and Informational Meetings
	Focus Group
	Materials Reviewed

	Appendix B: Cost Scenarios
	Cost Scenario 1: Implementing a COLA on top of the CODB
	Cost Scenario 2: Increasing lowest wage workers to $25/hr, estimated using historical MCO data
	Cost Scenario 3: Increasing lowest wage workers in child and family services to $25/hr, estimated using DCYF salary data
	Cost Scenario 4: Wage floors for specific positions, using SHPN cost estimates

	Appendix C: Census Bureau Workforce Indicators for San Francisco




